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ATTACHMENT A




IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE SIXTH ﬁUDICIAL CIRCUIT
IN AND FOR PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA .
CRIMINAL DIVISION

STATE OF FLORIDA,
Plaintiff
v, CASE NO. CRC 84-11698 CFANO

MARTIN GROSSMAN,
Defendant

ORRER

THIS CAUSE having come before the Court on the Defendant’s
Motion To Vacate Judgment Of Conviction and Sentence, And
Consolidated Request That Leave To Amend Be Allowed, filed August
13, 1890, along with the State’s Response to Motion to Vacatse
Judgment of Conviction and Sentence, filed May 17, 1891, and the
Court having fully considered each of the ten claims stated in the
Defendant's Motion, along with the State’s Response, and the files
and records, finds that:

I.%4 The Defendant’s first claim alleges: 1) that the "State
wifhheld material, exculpatory evidence regarding [a)] deals with
State witnesses [Charles] Brewer and {Brian] Hanceck, [b)] the usze
of Brewer as a police agent, and [¢)] an ongoing criminal :
investigation of State witness [Brian] Allan, and 2) that the State
knowingly allowed certain of its witnesses to testify untruthfully
in violation of" the Defendant’'s constitutional rights. .

A. In this claim, Defendant provides the Court with an
overview of the line of cases centering on Brady v, Maxvland, 373
U.8. 83 (1967), and argues that by “withholding evidence"” the State
has violated Defendant’s due process, sixth and fourteenth amendment

rights.

1. As a foundation for these claims, Defendant avers that
prior to trial, defense counsel had made specific requests for
information from the State, and that the State did not respond %o
any of the Defendant's motions. The Defendant alleges that evidence
of exculpatory and credibility-challenging information of the type
specifically requested in Defendant's pre-trial motions has recently
been discovered.

2. Defendant’s newly found evidence consists of
unspecified facts which allegedly "will be proven at an evidentiary
hearing,” along with recent affidavits from former State witnesses,
Charles Brewer and Brian Hancock. In their affidavits, these two
Wwitnessas recant various aspect= of their prior testimony. As such,
these affidavits, in conjunction with the recent affidavit of Den
Smith, are alleged to form the evidentiary basis for Defendant’s
claim of withheld evidence under 1)} a) and b), supra. As alleged,
this evidence, both directly and by inference, forms the basis for
Defendant’s claim of the use of false testimony under Defendant’s
claim 2), supra, as well, Additionally, Defendant, in claim 1) e},
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offers evidence in support thereof derived from recently obtained
investigative file=s that credibility-challenging evidence of
eriminal activity by State’s witness Brian Allen was also withheld.

a. The State, in its Response, asserts that there never
were any deals, under-the-table or not, with either Charles Brewer
or Brian Hancock. In support thereof, the State also tenders
affidavits intended to controvert the recanted testimony supplied by
Defendant's affjants, and to corroborate the State’'s witnesses'’
original testimony given either at trial or deposition.

4, Defendant further alleges in claim 1) b), supra., that
Brewer was induced to and did act as an “"agent” of the State, and
that Brewer had been told to ask specific questions of the Defendant
while they both were incarceratsd in exchange for the State's
intervention on Brewer's behalf at his subzequent sentencing on
unrelated matters. Again, the State refutes the Defendant’s claim
and allegations with affidavits of those persons who were supposedly
Brewer's contacts with the police and the State Attorney’s Office.

B. Defendant alleges facts sufficient to establish a prima
facie showing of an entitlement tc relief pursuant to Fla. R. Crim.
Proc. 3.850. Furthermore, Defendant's Motion alleges such facts
that this Court can not, through the attachment of portions of the
record and files alone, conclusively show that the movant is
entitled to no relief. Therefore, Defendant’s request for relief in
the form of an evidentiary hearing shall be granted on those issues
raised in Claim One. See, Lightbourne v. Dugger., 549 So.2d 1364,
1365 (Fla. 1989)(Lightbourne III)(“accepting the [defendant’s]
allegations . . . at face value , . . they are sufficient to require
an evidentiary hearing with respect to whether there was a Brady
violation."); and Porterfield v. State, 442 So.2d 1062 (Fla. 1lst
DCA 1983).

11 Defendant’s Claim II alleges that after Defendant’s Sixth

Amendment right to counsel had attached on January 18, 1985, via a
one count murder indictment, the State “knowingly exploited an
opportunity to confront [Defendant] without the presence of counsel
and thereby obtained incriminating statements from him," and
“deliberately elicited” such statements without a knowing and
voluntary waiver by Defendant when they allegedly instructed Charles
Brewer to obtain the "incriminating statements” from him.

A. Defendant’s claim is based upon facts similar to those
alleged in Claim I, 1) b), supra, i.e., that State's witness Charles
Brewer, a detainee/trusty with routine contact with Defendant for a
period of time while both were held at Pinellas County Jail prior to
Defendant’s trial, acted as an agent of the police and/or State

Attorney.
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1. Relying again upen the recanted testimony set forth in
Brewer's recent affidavit, the Defendant further asserts: <that the
ineriminating statements testified to at trial were specifically
sought by the police when they told Brewer to continue talking to
the Defendant and directed Brewar to ask Grossman specific
questions, that Brewer was promised assistance by the police if he
assisted them, and that Brewer was a prior state informant.

2. Defendant again asserts that the State’s affirmative
concealment of these facts precluded the Defendant from having
raised these issues previously, and as a result, the present
allegations should be considered timely.

3. As with his first claim, Defendant provides thisz Court
with an overview of the law on the issues raised, focusing on

Massiah v. United States, 377 U.S. 201, 98 S.Ct. 1199 (1964), and
Upnited States v. Henry, 474 U.S. 178, 108 S.Ct. 477 (1885).
4. Defendant has not previcusly raised the issues set

forth in this claim in either a motion in limine, a motion to
suppress, or on direct appeal.

B. The State’'s Response discounts the value of Brewer's
recantation affidavit based on its assertion that there never was
any agreement with him. As evidence thereof the State attaches a
copy of the transcript from Brewer’s sentencing hearing on separate,
unrelated charges wherein the State asserts that any agreement of
Brewer’s with the State would have been brought out by Brewer to
offset the impact of his being sentenced as an habitual felony
offender. Significantly, the State again relies on recent
affidavits of participants from the State Attorney’'s Office and
various police agencies,

C. Similar to the circumstances found in I. B., supra,
Defendant's allegations and attachments have set forth prima facie
legal grounds. The records in the file alone are not sufficient to
conclusively show that Defendant is not entitled to any relief.
Moreover, the State’s attachments in its Response are, at best, only
capable of creating a factual question ripe for an adversarial
hearing. Conssquently, Defendant is entitled to an evidentiary
hearing on the issues raised in Claim II.

7111, \ Claim III alleges a constitutional violation of Defendant’s
i to a fair trial. Defendant’s claim is basad upon the
s

equent representation of co-defendant Taylor by counsel from the
public defender's office after first representing both defendants.
‘Defendant asserts that during the course of this multiple
k\ representation his former counsel obtained confidential information
from Defendant. The Defendant contends that his former counsel’s
knowledge of the alleged confidential information presented a
“#lagrant and absolutely fundamental conflict of interest” which

obliterated Defendant's right to a fair trial.
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A. Defendant’s claim is procedurally barred because he could
have and should have raised it in his plenary appeal, Grossman v.
State, 525 So.2d 833 (Fla. 1988). (Correll v. Dugger. 558 So.2d 422,
428 n.6 (Claim VI) (1980). Defendant was on notice of the alleged
conflict of interest he now complains of both well before and at
trial, as well as thereafter, prior to filing a Notice of Appeal.
The extent of any prejudice suffered by the Defendant was as visible
then as it iz now. The fact that the basis of Defendant's
collateral attack is one of constituticonal magnitude or dimension
does not preclude this Court from holding that this claim is
procedurally barred, as Defendant has waived the argument that he
was denied a fair trisl on this issue. See, Tripla v State, 464
So.2d 1312 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985), agcord, ngh_z‘_ﬁnggg 385 So.2d 114
(Fla. 3d DCA 1880),

B. ﬁ;suming arguendo that Defendant’s constitutional claim was
not procedurally barred for failure to bring this is=ue on direct
appeal, gee, for e g ., Young v, State, 177 So.2d (Fla. 2& DCA 1985),

Defendant st111 would not be entitled to a hearing or other further
relief, as Defendant's claim fails on its merits as well.

1. Factually, the public defender’s office began its
"multiple representation” of the co-defendants on Saturday, December
28, 1984, when counsel from the Public Defender's Office was
appointed to represent them. Representation of Defendant was
terminated less than a week later on Thuraday, January 3, 1985, when
Defendant was appointed private counsel feollowing the Public
Defander’s filing of a Motion to Withdraw on the previous day.
During this brief span of time, which obviocusly included the New
Year holiday, Defendant avers that he was interviewed by an
investigator from the public defender’s office who formallized the
investigatiocn in an eight page memocrandum which contained "highly
sensitive and personal material.” Interestingly, despite
Defendant’s voluminous motion, attachment=, and exhibits, this
document was not provided for review by this Court. Regardless,
Dafendant contends that thereafter a meeting was held between the
investigator and the chief assistant public defender. Defendant
infers that this meeting provided a conduit for the transfer of
unspecified "confidences gained when Taylor’s counsel represented
[the Defendant].” Defendant's Moticn, paragraph 14, page 57.
Lastly, unspecified, "confidential information” iz alleged to have
been obtained from Defendant such that his right to a fair trial was
obliterated. Defendant’'s Motion, paragraph 168, page 59,

2. In contrast to the numercus cases cited in his first
two claims, Defendant here, cites Holloway v, Arkansas, 435 U.S.
475, 98 S.C0t. 1173 (1978), as the sole authority in his 18
paragraph, nine page claim that Defendant’s trial was not fair.

a. In Holloway, three criminal co-defendants
represented by the same attorney claimed that they were denied the
constitutional right to effective assistance of counsel. The
Supreme Court held that the trial court's denial of sole counsel's
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pre-trial motion for appointment of separate counsel required
automatic reversal of defendants’ convictions and remand for a grant
of the right to separate counszel because potential conflicts of
interest between the defendants were timely brought to the court's
attention as part of their motion. :

b. Bolleoway is factually and procedurally
distinguishable in as much as Defendant here failed to timely raise
the issue now complained of. Moreover, unlike the attorney in
Holloway who sought a pre-trial solution to a2 potential cenflict of
interest, and then was denied that relief, here, Defendant’s former
counsel immedi ealizin t the or ¢o
existed, filed a motion to withdraw, which was granted the very next

day. ~As evidenced by thilsf motion, hat
]

former counsel was awvara th
altholgh Grossman and Taylor were co*defendants: egig gfiiiﬂ:ﬁi:ﬁ;
interaests werea su clen

%£g;;_;%ag;EA1n_a_fai:_tx;al_Ln~11¢h$,n£-ﬁgllgg§zJ Thus, on both
e actual grounds, Holloway is inapposite to Defendant's

claim.

c. Mest significantly, however, Defendant here
misappiies the relevant legal principles. Defendant makes much of
former counsel’s motion to withdraw, implying that the public
defenders’ office, by stating therein that "the interests of these
clients [(Grossman and Taylor] are adverse,” has admitted to an
actual conflict sufficient to grant relief. Defendant’s attempt to
bootstrap the public defender’s recognition of a potential conflict
of adverse interests into an actual conflict of interest sufficlent
to state a collateral attack on Defendant’s judgment and sentence is
flawed. Defendant’s ¢laim arises from legal principles designed to
protect the adverse interests of co-defendants by affording them
separate counsel. This is the exact situation which Defendant's
former counsel protected both co-defendant’'s from. The
determinative issue is whether, during the time it took former

" eounsel to recognize the potential for conflict between the
co-defendants, Defendant revealed any cenfidential information which-

subsequently created an actual conflict of interest for former
eounsel, such that Defendant's trial was not constitutionally fair.

3. The State’s citation of Smith v. White, 815 F.2d 1401 (11th
Cir. 1987), in its Response is instructive oa this issue. In Sgith,
the test for an agtual conflict requires a showing of "inconsistent
interests."” JId. at 1405 (emphasis added). Analogiszing Smith to our
facts, mere proof that a criminal defendant’s counsel previously
represented a co-defendant would be insufficient to establish
“inconsistent interssts” absent a showing that counsel actually
learned particular confidential information during the prior
representation that was relevani to defendant’s later case, Id.

‘ (emphasis added).

a. Defendant’s allegations fail to set forth with any
particularity the confidential information allegedly gleaned by his
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former counsel while representing the Defendant. Defendant’s vague
and conclusory statements of "highly sensitive and per=zonal
material” (Defendant's Motion page 52, paragraph 4) and "significant
confidential information" (page 52, paragraph 5) are legally
insufficient to establish collateral relief under the Smith test.

i. The distinction between an actual and potential
conflict sufficient to entitle a defendant to an evidentiary hearing
was illuminated in Porter v  Wajinwright., 805 F.24 930 (llth Cir.
1986). Porter is a federal habeas corpus case where the state did
not raise the procedural default bar which previously had been
affirmed by the Florida Supreme Court, gee, n. 11, 805 F.2d4 at 940,
The Porter court stated that to prevail the defendant must
demonstrate that his former counsel actively represented conflicting
interests and that an actual conflict of interest adversely affected
former counsel's performance. Jd. at 939 (emphasis added). Because
the defendant had asserted facts which, if true, would have sufficed
to demonstrate an actual conflict apnd that such conflict adversely
affected his counsel's performance, the court held that defendant
was entitled to an evidentiary hearing. Id. at 839-40.

ii. In the instant case, without considering the
distinguishable alignment of movant and his former counsel from the
facts of Porter, Defendant has failed to alleges such facts as to
establish an agtual confliet.

b. Assuming Defendant's allegations were to pass the
first component of the Smith test, Defendant’s claims are still
legally insufficient as Defendant has not shown what relevance the
alleged particular confidential information played throughout
Defendant’s later case. At best, Defendant’s allegations cof former
counsel’s “duplicitous assault,” "character assassination,” "full
blown antagonism during the trial,"” loosing "another round of
salvos,” "betrayal," "final bombardment of [his] former client,"” and
“convolution of roles" are rhetorical, and, along with the
Defendant’s repeated references to thiszs Court’'s denial at trial of
his severance motions, fail to reveal the requisite relevancy to
meet the test for actual conflict. See, Smith, supra, 815 F.2d at
1405, Porter., supra, 805 F.24 at 940, and the concluding text in
Paragraph III. B. 3. a. 1., supra.

4. Accordingly, Defendant's third claim is legally
insufficient for the foregoing resasons. Notwithstanding the
aforementioned procedural bar, absent a prima facie claim, Defendant
is entitled to no further relief on this claim.

I¥.i Defendant's fourth and fifth claims state a denial of effactive
assistance of counsel at the guilt and penalty phases of trial,
respectively, in violation af the federal and atate constitutions,
As the State in each of these claims concedes that “"an evidentiary
hearing is needed” or "warranted,"” State’s Response, pages 33 & 34
this Court shall permit evidence of the allegations made in
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Defendant’s Motion in each of these claims, and corresponding
refuting evidence by the State, to be considered at an evidentiary
hearing. .

V. The sixth claim presented by the Defendant is that he was denied
a competent mental health examination and that counsel was
ineffective for failing to investigate and arrange for such an
examination in violation of Defendant's constitutional rights under
the federal and state constitutions. :

A. Defendant’'s claims here are procedurally barred as a2 Fla,
R. Crim. Proc. 3.850 motion can not be used as a second appeal, or
to use a different argument to relitigate the same issue, or 1o
circumvent the rule against second appeals. Medina v. State, 573
So0.2d 293. 285 (Fla. 1950)(summary denial of similar claims of
whether counsel was ineffective for failure to investigats
defendant'’'s mental health, whethar the mental health exam was
competently performed, and defendant's competency at sentencing,
proper by trial court).

B. Assuming arguendo that the aformentioned procedural bar is
unavailing, To the extent that Defendant’s claim involives his
constitutional right to have the State provide a competent mental
health examination, duea to his indigency, as part of the
guilt/innocence phase of his trial, this Court’s Order of June 8,
1985 (attached as Exhibit I}, filed June 13, 1985, granting
Defendant’s Motion to Provide Funds and/or Authority to Hire
Confidential Expert Psychliatrist or Psychologist fulfill= the
mandate of Aks v. Oklahoma, 470 U.S. 68, 105 S.Ct. 1087 (1985}, as
well as the requirements of Fla. R. Crim. Proc. 3.216, assuming for
the moment, the "competency" of Defendant'’'s examination.
Accordingly, the Defendant’s claim is also without merit.

1. Defendant further contends that Defense counsel was
ineffective for failing to investigate and arrange for such an
examination. Defendant’s claim here iz based upon defense counsel’s
alleged failure to provide appointed confidential expert
psychiatrist, Dr. Sidney Merin, Ph.D. with an "independent history"
of “the relevant and crucial facts regarding Defendant’s mental,
emotional, psychological or developmental background.”

a. In Card v. Dugger, 911 F.2d 1484, 1511-12 (i1th
Cir. 1990), the court held that absent an indication that
defendant’s mental health experts felt incapable of basing thelir
conclusions on the information they obtained through their own
testing and examinations, counsel was not ineffective undar the test
in Strickland v. Washington, 4686 U.S. 668, 690-91, 104 S.Ct. 2052,
2066 (1984). The court’s rationale was based on the fact that
counsel was not on notice that further investigation was warranted,
and the court stated once the experts’ reporta were received,
ccunsel was not obligated to track down every record that might
possibly relate to defendant’'s mental health and could affect a
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diagnosis. 1d. at 1512. 8See also, Funchess v. Wainwright, 772 F.2d
683, €89 (1ith Cir. 1985)(no notice to defense counsal where '

defandant found competent prior to trial after psychological
evaluation).

b. With the exception of Defahdant’s owWn
allegations that background materials were "needed t¢ perform a

competent mental health evaluation,” _the record here fails to
gg%3;g;izﬁlx_asiahligh_ghn:ha:_nzﬁnniwnsinndnnh_a_ngﬂnﬁsl_nnguggg_%%
notice of the n ddi ggl_in1g:maxinn_irnm_nzé_ﬂsg_EBI__
that Dr. Merin himsel? had ever concluded capable
of making th & %‘%—Wﬁmu——-mﬁ“
on Defendant’s background. No standing the abzence of such

on Defen Ackgroun
record evidencs, howsver, Defendant’s claim is without merit as it
fails the second prong of Strickland, aupra, as there has been no
showing that but for such claimed ineffectiven u a

urthermore, this Court
concludes the jury would not have been persuaded to arrive at a
different result, nor would this Court have been persuaded to reach
a different result, assuming the substance of Defendant's
allegations had been introduced into evidence. See, Correll v.
Dugger, 558 So.2d 422, 425-26 (Fla. 1990)(denial of post-conviction
relief, without evidentiary hearing, affirmed where allegations of
ineffective assistance of counsel at penalty phase falled to mest

second prong of Strickland).

2. Defendant’s allegations, to the extent they claim
Defendant was unconstitutionally denied a competent mental health
examination for use at the penalty phase in his capital case, are
without merit. Defendant here did not regquest psychiatric
assistance to aid in presenting mitigating circumstances. Absent a
timely request, there is no constitutional right to appointment of
psychiatric sssistance under Ake. Thompson v, Wainwright, 787 F.2d
1447, 1459 {11th Cir. 1986). Morsover, Defendant’s associated clainm
of ineffective am=zistance of counsel in this regard is also without
merit for the reasons stated immediataely above.

3. Nor can counsel be considered ineffective for failing
to obtain a “competent” mental health examination for Defendant at
trial where the expert retained is duly licensed and recognized.
See, Silagy v. Peters, 905 F.2d 988, 1013 n.22 (Tth Cir.

1980) (indigent defendant’s right to competent mental health
examination did not protect defendant from negligence ¢f mental
health care provider)., Moreover, Dafendant’'s reliance on Siate v,

, 502 So.2d 122 (Fla. 1987), and Mason v. State, 489 So.2d 734

Rireci
(Fla. 1986), is misplaced See Correll v, Dugger, 558 So.2d4 422,
426 (Fla, 1990).

c. Thus, contrary to Defendant's contentions, there is no
entitlement to an evidentiary hearing or further relief as Defendant
has failed to state a legally sufficient claim for which such relief
can be granted.
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(EZi;%LIn hi=s seventh claim Defendant asserts that c¢ritical stages of
T

he /proceedings were conducted in his absence, in viclation of Fla.
hrim. Proc. 3.180 and his federal and state constitutional
rights.

A, Defendant’s claim is procedurally barred from consideration
under Fla. R. Crim. Proc. 3.850, as Defendant could and should have
raised this claim as part of his direct appeal. Medina, supra, 573
Sc.2d at 295; Hgndsziﬁg_zt_ggxaﬁz, 522 S0.24 835, B36 (Fla., 1988);
and Blanco v. Wainwright, 507 So.2d 1377, 1380 (Fla. 1987).
Defendant’s citation to state authorities, where accurate (see
C/ Defendant’'s Motion, page 280, paragraph 2, citation for Francis v.
' State). 1s inapposite with respect to the applicability of the
Q&‘ procedural default bar, as each of these cases was decided on appeal

and not as part of a subseguent Fla. R. Crim. Proc. 3.850 motion, as
in the instant caze.

B. Notwithstanding the aforementiconed procedural bar, the
record reflects that Defendant's waiver by counsel was both
voluntary and knowing as evidenced by his counsel’'s statement in
Defendant’'s presence in open court that his client also did not
“desire tc be there.” See Exhibit II, attached, Appellate Record,
p. 2348, See, Amagon v, State, 487 So.2d 8, 11 (Fla. 1988)(defense
counsel's waiver of defendant’'s appearance permitted where defendant
acquiesces with actual knowledge).

ViI. ) In summary, Defendant’'s eighth claim contends that the State’s
iliefal conduct and "prosecutorial improprieties” rendered the
endant’s trial fundamentally unfair. As noted in V1., supra,
Defendant’s claim is procedurally barred from consideration under
\%’(;; Fla. R. Crim. Proc. 3.850, as Defendant could and should have raised

this claim as part of his direct appeal. Medina, , 573 So.2d
at 295; Atkins v, Dugger, 541 So.2d 1165, 1166, n.1 (Fla. 1888);
~ and Blanco v, Wajnwright, 507 So.2d 1377, 1380 {Fla. 1887).

III.> Claim IX states that Defendant’s death sentence was violative
' federal and state constitutions because it was "based on a
verdict of death from a sentencing jury that was instructed only in
bare tarms of Florida’s faclally vague ‘especially heincus,

atrocious or cruel’ aggravating circumstance.”

A. Procedurally, Defendant here is barred from raising his
claim collaterally under Fla. R. Crim. Proc. 3.850, as Defeadant
could and should have raised this claim as part of his direct
appeal. This conclusion iz bolstered where as here, the Defendant
has previously raised the issue of Jury instructions with respect to

QX v this aggravating factor, and had the lsasue decided unfavorably on
appeal. See, Grossman v. State, 525 So.2d 833, 840-41 (Fla. 1988).

procedurally barred, the claim fails on its merits. Dafendant .
aontends that his claim is supported by the subsequent decision of

|
|
|
%
B. Assuming arguendo that Defendant's claim is not
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the United States Supreme Court in Maynard v, Cartwright, 486 U.S.
356, 108 S.Ct. 1853 (1988), where the language of Oklahoma's jury

instruction for “heinous, atrocicus or cruel” aggravating
circumstances was held to be facially unconstitutional.

1. Defendant concludes that bacause Oklahoma's
instruction was more explicit than Florida’'s statutory jury
instruction for the same aggravating circumstance, Defendant’s death
sentence based on the jury verdict must also be uncenstitutional on
its face. Defendant argues this is especially true where, as here,
the instruction was given without any of the clarification
previocously requested by Defendant's ccounsal,

2. The State, in itz Response, correctly assarts that the
Florida Supreme Court has declined to apply Maynard to Florida's
structurally distinct and substantially different death sentence
procedure, citing Smalley v, State, 546 So.2d 720, 722 (Fla. 19839).
In Smalley, the court held that Maynard was inapposite to Florida’'s
heincus, atrocious or cruel aggravating factor in death penalty
sentences. Id. BSee also, Proffitt v. Florida, 428 U.S. 242, 96
S.Ct. 2960 (1978).

C.  Consequently, Defendant’s claim is legally insufficient on
both procedural and substantive grounds, and thus, Defendant is
entitled to none of the relief requested.

IX. Defendant’'s tenth and final c¢laim alleges that the sentencing
court failed to expressly evaluate all mitigating factors proposed
by Defendant, falled to find each proposed mitigating factor that
was reasonably established by the evidence and was mitigating in
nature, and failed to weigh those mitigating factors against the
aggravating c¢ircumstances, such that Defendant was deprived of his
rights to a sentence arrived at by reliable procedures and subject
to meaningful appellate review, in violation of the federal and
state constitutions.

A. Assuning the validity of Defendant’s claim for the moment,
Defendant requests= the retroactive application of subsequent Florida
decisions delineating procedures for trial courts to use when
waighing a defendant's proposed mitigating factors in death sentence
cases. The Defendant specifically refers to Campbell v, State, 571
So.2d 415 (Fla. 19%0), and Nibert v, State, 574 So.2d 1059 (Fla.
1980), as examples of applicabla caselaw which, from Defendant’s
view, define "a sea of change" in Florida’'s capital sentencing law
(see Defendant's Motion, pg. 300, paragraph 5). Defendant, however,
apparently fails to apprehend that the remedy provided by Nibert is
a direct appeal. Clearly the Defendant has alrsady tested these
waters without success.

1. In Defendant’s appellate case the Florida Supreme
Court held that on the issue of weighing and balancing mitigating
factors, "[nleither the jury nor the judge was sufficiently
impressed by th(e] [mitigation] evidence to find that it outweighed
the aggravating circumstances. We see no error.” Grossman, 3upra,
525 5¢0.2d at B41.
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2. Thus, Defendant has no entitlement to further review
of this issue as part of his collateral attack, as his claim is
procegurally barred as one which was brought on Defendant’s plenary
appeal.

B. Assuming arguendo the continued vitality of Defendant’s
claim {nothwithstanding the aforementioned procedural bar),
Defendant further allegass that due proceas and equal protection -
require relief. The rule of law to be applied to the inztant case

was set forth in Teague v, Lape, 489 U.S5. 288, 109 S.Ct. 1060
(1889), and restated in §§gx§x_x*_§m1§h U.s. ., 110 S.Ct.

2822, 2828 (1990). Thers, the Court held, , that for the purpose of
determining federal habeas corpus relief, a rule of coanstitutional
law established after a conviction has become £inal may not be used
to attack a defendant's coanviction unless the rule applies a new
watershed rule of c¢riminal procedure that enhances accuracy and is
necessary to the fundamental fairness of the criminal proceeding
(emphasis added). Id.

1. The Teague principle, applied in Sawyer, serves to
ensure that gradual developments in the law over which reasonable
jurists may disagree are not later used to upset the finality of
state convictions valid when entered, and thereby, preclude the
uawarranted continuing reexamination of final Jjudgments based on
later emerging legal doctrine. Sawyer, supra, 110 S5.Ct. at 2827,

2. Clearly, although the accuracy of determining
mitigating factors may be affected by the subsequent decisions of
Campbell and Nibert, there is no showing that the fundamental
fairness of Defendant’s proceedings would be so affected. This
conclusion is buttressed by the court’s analysis in Campbell
itzself. There the court cited and applied binding precedent in
effect at the time of Defendant’s conviction and sentence,
Wainwright, 392 So.2d 1327, 1331 (Fla. 1981), and stated that for
' the weighing and balancing of aggravating and mitigating
circumstances found by a trial court in death sentence cases to be
sustained, the trial court’s final decision in the weighing process
must be supported by sufficient competent evidence in the record.

, Supra, 571 S5o0.2d at 420. Given that the Florida Supreme .
Court was bound by the same precedent in both Gross=map, supra, and
Campbell., supra, the fundamental fairness of Defendant’s coaviction
was not affected so as to activate the Teague exception. See also,

v, ., 522 So0.2d4 835 (Fla. 1988)(no retroactive
application of subsequent United States Supreme Court decision to
convicted murderer’s post-conviction relief motion absent a major
constitutional change).

C. Additionally, the allegations set forth by Defendant in
this claim, even if accepted as true, are insufficient to alter the
outcome of the previous balancing of aggravating and mitigating
circumstances reached by either the jury or this Court.
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D. Lastly, to the extent that the Defendant’s request for
retrcactive application of rules from "favorable" caselaw can be
analoglized to the retroactive application of subasequently enacted
statutes which might ameliorate or mitigate a punishment or penalty,
Article X, section 9 of the Florida Constitution would act to
preclude the application of such "rules” so as to effect a final
Judgment or sentence. Lacey v, State, 553 So.2d 778 (Fla. 4th DCA
1989); and State v, Ussary, 543 So.2d 457 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989).

E. Thus, Defendant’s claim is legally insuf!icient to entitle
him to further relief.

WHEREFORE, IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Defendant’s Motion
be, and the same is hereby, GRANTED, to the extent that an
EVIDENTIARY HEARING is to be set for as soon as practicable for all
parties concerned only for the express purposes sst forth above, AND.
that Defendant’s Motion otherwise shall be, and hereby is, DENIED.

The Defendant 1= hereby notified of his right to appeal the
partial denial of his motion within thirty (30) days from the date
of this Order.

DONE AND 0 in Chapbers at Clearwater. Pinellas County,
Florida this day of m 1991.

CIRCUIT JUDGE
cc: State Attorney

Robert L. Parks, Esq. _
ANDERSON, MOSS, PARKS, & RUSSO, P.A.
Suite 2500, New Weorld Tower

100 North Biscayne Boulevard

Miami, Florida, 33132

Martin Edward Grossman DC# 0885742
Florida State Priszon

P.0. Box 747

Starke, Florida, 32081
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I 113 Mallette St. « Chapal Hill, NC 27514 » Phone 919 968-4931
i

PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATION

Name : Martin Grossman
Date of Birth: 1/15/1965
Age: 23

Client Status: Death Row

Examiner: Brad Fisher, PhbD

Place of Examination: Florida State Prison
Date of Examination: March 28, 1990

B r ifvin £ Lon

This 25-year-old white male was referred for evaluation in
connection with proceedings related to his Death Row Status. The
evaluation coemprised a standard battery of intellectual,
projective, and personality tests, together with initial
screening for the possibility of corganic brain dysfunction.

Background of Evaluator

2r. Filsher is a graduate ¢f Harvard University {(cum laude, 1972)
and cne ¢f the two programs in the country specializing in
forensic psychology (University of Alabama, PhD, 1976). For the
past .5 years he has worked exclusively in the area of forensic
evaluations, including applications of evaluation methods through
grants from the Federal Justice Department (National Institute of
Corrections) and participation in the largest study of Death Row
units in the country (National Institute of Justice). He has
cestified concerning forensic evaluations on both individual-and-
system-wide bases in approxXimately thirty states, including
several cases in Florida. He is currently working private
practice and teaching at Duke University. Details of his
background are enclosed in the attached vitae.

The following materials were reviewed and play a part in the
opinions expressed in this report:
1. Affidavit of Ben Green

2. Affidavit of Richard Fox
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Bea Briklod
Jules Briklod
8issy Feldman
Larry Lighty
Peter Pappalardo

Edward Del Toro
Marion Gustafson
Maryijane Mclloy
Brian Hancock

Karen Stough
Patricia P. Metheney
Harry Stough

Polly Potter

Odeal Millovan
Michael Perricone
Rabbi Nathan Zolondek
Barry Morton

Ida Eisenman

Rurth Nield

Joyce white

Barbara Powers

Gus Manticos

Eileen Simmons

Ellen Martindale
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Joseph Hart
Brian Allan

Charles Brewer
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Rosol Melton
Reverend Bonnie Guess
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Florence Murov
Lucise Levine

Shirley Hanshaw
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Don sSmith

Paul J. Rittenhouse
Sally Karioth
Ronald H. Sunderland
Myra Grossman

Peter A. Proly

of Paul Melton

Attorney intake interview notes

Gulf High School records

Pasco County School District records

Hialeah Junior High School records

Dade County public school records

wilford Hall Hospital records (father)--May.

1965
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Florida State Prison records
Court records
Records relating to previous criminal history

Human Development Center of Pasco County on Martin Edward
Grossman

Veterinary records on pets of Myra Grossman

Ira Liss, M.D., Records on Martin E. Grossman :
Human Development Center of Pasco County on Rosol Melton
New Port Richey Hospital records of Roscol Melton

Riverside Hospital records on Rosol Melton _
Florida Department of Law Enforcement Records on Faul Melton
Pasco County Court records on Martin E. Grossman

Pinellas County Sheriff's Office records on Martin E.
Grossman

Childhood and School Materials of Martin Edward Grossman
Retained by Myra Grossman

Deposition of James D. Yuna

Direct Appeal Opinion

Clemency File

Military Records on Richard Alan Grossman
Military Records on Martin E. Grossman

Hialeah Juvenile Records on Martin E. Grossman
PSI on Martin E. Grossman

Records of Sidney Merin, PhD




In addition tTo the above-noted materials., the following tests

were administered and play a role in the opinions offered in this
report:

I. Intellectual testing
The Wechsler Adult Intelligence Scale (partial)

IT7. Projective testing
The Sentence Completion Test
The House-~Tree-Person Test
The Thematic Aperception Test (partial)

III. Organic Screening

The Bender Visual Motor Gestalt Test
The Neurological Screening Examination

V. Qther
Mental Status Interview
Mental Status Checklist
Personal History Checklist

8 Vi V.

Mr. Grossman was cooperative, attentive, and straightforward
during the testing session. There was some evidence of a high
level of parancia based on the observed behavior of an inability
to keep eye contact with the examiner, rather, darting his eyes
to anyone who would be entering or leaving the examination area.
In addition. this was noted through the behavior he exhibited of
fearful concern toward any type of psychological testing. This
was stated through a long series of questions before any tests
could be administered concerning what mignt possibly be found out
from the tests. It is not clear to this examiner the extent of

the threat perceived by testing, other than it is obviocusly at a
high level.

Reg o in

Mental status examination revealed the client to bhe oriented in
all three spheres.

Organic screening testing (i.e., the Bender Visual Motor Gestalt
Test) revealed soft signs of organic impairment. These included
figure rotations, problems in angulation of figures, problems in
figure closure, and overall difficulty in drawing any of the more
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cemplicated figures. This peossibility of organic dysfunction
appears to be further supported by a history of chronic and
extensive drug and alcohol dependence. Further testing weould be

required to determine the nature and extent of this probable
mental disability.

Projective and perscnality testing, as well as interview
impressions, revealed some level of parancid ideaticn. While
this did not appear to be at the level of a psychotic condition.
it was noted thrcugh high levels of suspicion in behavior, as
well as questions about nearly all the types of testing and fear
of Testing hecause of what it might tell about him.

There were ng signs in any of the testing components of either a
current psychotic condition or of any major affective disqrder.

Dev A%

Martin Edward Grossman is an only child born on January 19, 19&5
cn a military base near San Antonio, Texas. By the time Martin
was four months old, Richard Grossman. Martin's father, a career
military man, had been diagnesed with myotonic dystrophy. first
degree heart block and chronic brain syndrome. He was retired on
B0% disability in June of 1965, These diagnoses were made four
years after a serious car accident. described by family members
as & suicide attempt. Mr. Grossman suffered multiple injuries te
his head and face during the accident. Military records raflect

one civilian criminal case against Richard--a voyeurism charge ia
Valdosta, Georgla in 1963.

In Martin's sixth month, the Grossman family moved to Hialeah,
rlerida, where Martin's maternal grandparents and aunt lived and
where tThey could take advantage of military medical treatment for
Richard at Homestead Alr Force Base. Wwhen Martin was four years
cld, he was admitted to the hospital with pneumcnia, and a fever
apove 104 degrees. Shortly after admission, he began
experiencing grand mal seizures, termed "tonic ¢lonic” hy
hospital staff. He was given phenobarbital. which controlled the

seizures, and placed in an enclosed, cage~like crib for several
days.

By the age of three, Martin was left alene with his father and
had been trained to take care of his basic needs as well as to
perfcrm in emergency situations. Martin still reports a high
level of anxiety and fear attendant to his childhood nursemaid




duties. Both interview and review of background material reveal
that Martin felt responsible for the life of his father., and that
ne was placed in the position at a very voung age of being
directly responsive to this central concern. Because his father
would slip intoc unconscicusness and need reviving, Martin had to
monitor Richard carefully, when necessary breaking an ammonia
capsule and placing it under his father's nostril. There are
many accounts in the background materials of Martin's mother,
Myra, being unable or unwilling to perform many of the unpleasant
tasks associated with the care of her husband. FEven when she was
present in the home, she relegated te her small scn the job of
ensuring that Richard was asleep rather than comatcse. This was
necessary because Richard slept with his eves open, and his
medical history included instances of lapsing into coma without
warning. Martin was directed to shake his father until some sign
cf life was elicited, and to administer medication should life
2igns be absent feollowing arousal. In addition to these life or
death decisions and responsibilitieg, Martin was expected to
assist his father in all areas, including the use of the toilet.

Elementary school records reflect Martin's markedly below average
mental abilities. While he was not a discipline problem., he did
present cause for concern in several areas. Teachers noted
Martin's peor muscular coordination, inability to sustain
attention for lengths ¢of time expected of his age group, and a
lack of ability to achieve academic levels appropriate to his age
group. His grades were almost uniformly below average, as were
the results of standardized testing. He performed especially
poerly in mathematics. in some tests achieving scores in the
lowest measurable category. A number of Martin's elementary
school teachers confirm what the school records show, noting
Martin's slowness, concentration difficulties., and inability to
grasp the basic principles involved in an elementary education
despite earnest effort. One teacher recalls that Myra Grossman
expected her son to become a doctor or a lawyer, but that such
goals were clearly unattainable for Martin. The teachers also
rnote Martin's cooperative and gentle nature, and his shyness.

Following the normal school day, Martin attended Hebrew school.
The rabbili who taught Martin repcrts Martin's sincere belief in
God, his interest in the Jewish faith, and his caring nature,
which was especially evident in Martin's relationship with
Richard. The rabbi recalls that Martin had. tremendous difficulty
relating to amd interacting with the other children in his

charge, and that great effort was needed to enable Martin to
sgcialize with them.
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Until Martin was ten years of age, his great uncle, Meyer Levine,
resided in the Grossman home. Mr. Levine was elderly, physically
ill with diabetes, which he refused to treat, and is described as
mentally ill and abusive as well. Mr. Levine died in 197%.

Numerous deaths in the Grossman/Levine family occurred in
relatively short order thereafter.

Those who knew Martin well in his childhood report that hisg life
revolved around caring for his father to the exclusion ¢f most
typical childhood activities. Even scouting, which Martin
enjoyed and which could have provided a respite from the burdens
of his young life, was dominated by Richard and Martin's
continued care-giving responsibilities, There are many
descriptions of Martin refraining from active participation in
scouting events due to the fact that Richard was present and

Martin felt obligated to stay behind with him to ensure his
safety.

It should be highlighted that Richard was not only physically
disabled, but, consistent with his chronic brain syndrome
diagnosis, was mentally and emotiocnally impaired as well. His
behavior was, by all accounts, childish and demanding, and Martin
was direcred by Myra to vield to Richard's demands and to appease
him whenever necessary. According to records and reports, Myra
was herself emctionally disturbed, chrenically depressed.,

medicated with tranquilizers for "nerves.," and an incompetent and
ineffectual parent.

There is mention in some of the background material of the
importance of Phil Levine, Martin's maternal grandfather, in
Martin's childhood and adolescence. Mr. Levine apparently
attempted to provide the essentially orphaned Martin with scme
guidance and attenticon, and Martin was devoted te him. Mr.
Levine, however, i1s described in very negative terms by many who
knew him. It appears that he was demanding., arrogant, over-
controlling, and "ruled with an iron fist." Myra's sister,
Rosol, was another family member of great importance in Martin's
young life. Rosol's history of mental illness. drug dependence
{which also is seen on the part of Rosol's daughter., Rachel), and
abuse towards her own children is well documented. This
documentation includes an instance of voluntary hospitalization
unéer the Baker Act.

In 1978, the Grossman family moved to New Port Richey,_?}o;i@a.
The impetus for this move was the construction of a sun§1v151on
in that city designed specifically for disabled and retired




veterans. This community, called Veterans Village, was occupied
Dy many disabled, wheelchair-bound men, and was, by all accounts.
a2 depressing and unusual neighborhood. Martin continued to spend
after school hours caring for Richard, and began performing
chores and favors for other invalids in the area.

Martin's grandfather died in November of 1979, shortly after he
was diagnosed with cancer. Although Martin obiected. the
Grossman family placed Mr. Levine in a nursing home following his
diagnosis. Many people noticed that Martin was quite withdrawn,
distant, and profoundly depressed after Mr. Levine died, but it
appears that none focused on his grief or otherwise sought ‘any
help for him. Family members repert that the survivors among
them all experienced tremendous grief and were at a loss as to
how toe survive without Mr. Levine. Myra was reportedly
especially affecrted by the death of her father, and there are

reports that her emotional problems and reality contact worsened
at this time.

Richard died of a heart attack on January 25, 1981, following a
veriod of marked degeneration of both physical and mental
functioning. Background materials reflect that towards the end
of his life, Richard could no longer even pretend to follow a
conversation and was interested mainly in toys and children's
games. Martin had to divide his time with Richard between
performing caretaking duties and being his playmate. Because
Richard died in the hospital without warning, Martin could not
anticipate the finality of the situation or prepare himself in
any way for the loss cof his father. As was true following the
death of Phil Levine, Martin's distress, confusion and profound
grief were noted but essentially ignored. There are reports that
Myra became even more dysfunctional at this time, and. rather
tnan provide any support for her son, needed a great deal of
support and attention herself. She relied on Martin for support
and companionship rather than provide nurturance for him.

Eight months after Richard's death and after failing the ninth
grade, Martin withdrew from school. Despite placement in a
program designed for students with learning disabilities,
Martin's academic performance in junior high school was extremely
poor. He was promoted To ninth grade only after completing a
basic summer program. Scheool counselors and social workers began
being concerned about Martin due to his excessive absenteeism.
Records reflect that somatic complaints were the source of
Martin's frequent absences from school, but that a medical doctor

ruled out physical problems and attributed Martin's complaints to
depression.




Due primarily to his poor school attendance, Martin was referred
to a community mental health center. Myra attended sessions with
her son, and counselors focused on her dependence on Martin and
the abnormal, symbiotic relationship between mother and son.
Records reflect the counselor's belief that Myra "sabotaged”
Martin's development, encouraging and fostering his absence from
school due te her need for companicnship. She is deseribed in
these records as an "hysteric" presenting a "motherly exterior,”
but possessing none of the abilities of an adequate parent.
Martin is described as “easily led and shy." and there are
notations reflecting his pediatrician's belief that Martin's
fregquent somatic complaints were caused by depression rather than
physical illness. Martin received a diagnosis of conversion
disorder during this time, a reflection of his unintenticnal
production of physical illness due to psychosocial stressors
related to a psychological conflict. Martin's treatment was
discontinued because Myra felt that her behavior and parenting

abilities were being scrutinized: she refused to continue the
counseling sessions.

Following Richard's death, family and others began noticing
Martin's use of alcchol, marijuana, trangquilizers., sedatives, and
other street drugs. Martin reports extensive and chronic
dependence on alcohel. marijuana, cocaine, PCP, valium, darvon
and phencbarbital, the latter three being readily available in
his mother's medicine cabinet. Martin's use of alcchol and drugs
appears to have been constant and indiscriminate; he would drink
or ingest anything available to him. He reports instanges of
blackout following alcohol use. He reports no conscious suicide
attempt involving his drug use, but notes that he ingested
amcunts of narcotics that he knew could cause death.

Zn the latter part of 1982, Martin's girlfriend, Bernadette
Center, became pregnant. By all accounts, Martin very much
wanted to marry her and raise the baby. Ms. Center's parents and
Myra refused to allow this., and refused to allow Martin and
Bernadette to have any contact whatscoevery., The baby girl was

ultimacely placed with an adoption agency, and Martin has never
seen nis daughter.

In February of 1983, Martin, then seventeen years old, was
arrested with others for the burglary of his girlfriend's house.
He plead guilty and was sent to a youthful offender facility
foellowing sentencing to two vears incarceration and two years of
conmunity control. Psychological testing from this incarceration
revealed Martin‘s IQ to be 77, in the borderline range of mental
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functioning. Counselors noted that he was in need of AA,
Creatment for his chronic drug dependence, and life skills, human
relations, and communication and socialization education.

Records from this incarceration are almost uni formiy laudatory.
Martin received numerous grants of gain time for cutstanding work
performance, conduct, dormitory evaluations and class
participation. He was chosen for and participated in a program
designed to discourage juveniles who had come into contact with
the criminal justice system from further criminal behavior, and
wag commended for same. He volunteered to perform chores such as
cleaning the dining room., and was considered a positive influence
on the other inmates. While at the facility, Martin studied for
the GED exam, but was ultimately unable to achieve a passing
grade. He was transferred to a work release center near his home
in January of 1984, and secured a job at a restaurant. The
general manager reports that Martin was an excellent worker,
polite and helpful, and that he routinely stayved until closing
‘time and walked her home due to his concern for her safety. or
her safety. He was furloughs during this time, and always
reported back to the facility on time.

Martin was released from the facility in July, 1984. He worked
at a variety of odd jobs., and resumed living at his mother's
house in New Port Richey. His previous dependence on drugs and
alcohol reportedly resumed as well, and became increasingly
pronounced and debilitating.

Martin was arrested on Christmas Day, 1984, for the murder of a
wildlife officer which occurred December 13 of the same year. He
was nineteen years o0ld. Pretrial detention reccords from the
Pinellas cCounty Jail reflect Martin's emotional distress at that
time, perceived at one point as severe enough to warrant the
sdministration of the psychotropic drug Trilafon, and the
antidepressant Elavil.

Florida State Prison records reflect Martin's excellent
adaptation to the death row environment. In his five years at

the facility, Martin has received no disciplinary reports
whatsoever.

Martin Grossman has long suffered the effects of compremised
intellectual functioning, probable brain dysfunction., a
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develqpmental history characterized by profound and untreated
complicated bereavement, psychosocial stressors severe enough to

cause conversion discrder, a high level of fear and depression,
and parental neglect, abandonment and mistreatment. He has
reacted to these events and disabilities with passivity. and has
been described by many as kind, easily led, helpful. and sager to
please. Each of these factors is relevant to sentencing
considerations. However, Martin’s mental state at —he time of
the cffense was disorganized, chactic and devoid of reality

contact due primarily to the effects of brief reactive psychosis
(298.80}

A review cof background materials, especially descriptions of the
offense present in police reports and depositions cf potential
state witnesses, and my own interview with Martin Grossman make
brief reactive psycheosis the most appropriate diagnosis for the
Time of the offense. What is clear from all of these sources is
that Martin was in a disorganized and discriented state devoid of
reality contact. Brief reactive psychosis is often precipitated
by & major stressor such as combat. It appears that what could
be perceived as a combat-like situation ensued following the
wildlife cofficer's firing at Martin's friend and codefendant,
Thayne Taylor. Perplexity, confusion. delusions, and marked
loosing of associations were present by description in Martin's
behavior at this time. Accounts of Martin pointing a gun at his
friend and ultimately "snapping out of it" after much cajoling
and reassurance are consistent in the materials. OCne report
states That co~-defendant Tayler was "pleading with Martin to come
back to his senses.”™ A further complicating factor is the use of
drugs (PCP) and alcohol described by some prior to the offense.
The statutory mitigating factors described in Section 921.141

(8) (b) and (f) clearly speak to Martin's mental and emctional
state, Jjudgment, reality contact, and cognition during and
immediactely following the murder of Peggy Park.

Given the facts and diagnosis described above, it would be
inconsistent and highly illogical to characterize Martin's
actions during the murder as ratiocnally directed toward the goals
of aveiding arrest or hindering law enfeorcement. No such goal-
oriented behavior or cognition was possible given the severely
altered mental state in which Martin was functioning at this
time. Because he was in a psychotic state., he was likewise
unable to form the premeditation for the underliving felconies
present in this case {robbery, burglary and escape).
Premeditaticon, reality-based behavior and assessment played no
part in the events leading to and following the murder.
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In addition to the above, there are many other perscrnalirty,
mental make-up and life circumstances of Martin Grossman that

should be considered as further mitigation.

These are discussed
at length elsewhere in this report.

=ummary and Conclusicons

Martin Grossman was born to a mentally and physically disabled
father and a dysfunctional mother., He was used as a nursemaid
from the age of three, and his world was largely defined by the
presence of chronically il]l and dependent adults. His needs were
ignored and neglected, and he was forced to perform as an adult
caretaker for his father and a companion for his mentally 111
mother. Even with one emoticnally healthy parent, the
psychological and behavioral effects on children of living with a
dying and disabled parent can be debilitating and life-long,
especially when the c¢child is forced to care for the invalid and
is denied information about the illness and other crucial forms
of support and cutlet for stress and grief. In Martin's case, no
support was forthcoming, and the presence cf his physically
healthy but mentally disturbed mother markedly exacerbated the
demands placed cn him and the lack of focus on even his most
basic needs. In essence, there was a complete reversal of the
normal roles, duties and responsibilities between parents and
child, with the ill-equipped, frightened child being forced to
perform as an adult under circumstances which would be stressful
and difficult for even a mature and healthy adult. In addition
o living each day with and caring for his dying father, Martin
ultimately suffered the loss of numerous relatives, of greatest
importance being the death of his maternal grandfather. This
loss was profoundly debilitating to him, but his own needs for
comfort and reassurance were ignored by his disorganized and
dysfiunctiocnal family unit. Martin's pain and bereavement
following his father's death were similarly ignored and

untreated., and his mother's dependence on Martin heightened at
this point.

Martin simply could not cope alone with the confusion, isolation
and pain caused by the myriad lifelong realities and _
responsibilities described above. He developed conversion ‘
disorder, a psychiatric disorder presenting as somatic complaints
for which no physical etiology can be found. This disorder 1is
not volitional, but is caused by the relationship between a
psychosocial stressor related to a psychological ceonflict or need
that is unrecognized., unresclved. or unmet. It usually develops

in an atmesphere of extreme psychological stress, as was true in
Martin's case.
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School records and other background materials reveal that Martin
Las always been intellectually compromised. and was never able to

learn as normal children do. He was placed in special classes
for learning disabled students, but was still unable to achieve
passing grades. The department of corrections testing reveals
Martin's IQ to be 77, in the borderline range of intellectual
functicning. On further testing, Martin performed poorly in
those areas designed to detect the presence of organic brain
damage, giving rise to the probability that such damage exists.

In part as a coping mechanism for the confusion, harshness and
Fain in his life, and in part because of what appears to be a
genetic predispositien to addiction {Myra's narcotic and
tranquilizer use, Rosol's drug addiction. and cousin Rachel's
dependence on drugs), Martin became dependent on alcohel and
drugs at an early age. These dependencies were chronic and of
long duration, and are the likely cause of neurological
dysfunction displayed on testing.

Martin's first incarceration appears to have been the most
stable, productive pericd in his life. He received ocutstanding
evaluations in all areas, was given many gain time grants, and
was trusted to participate in the furlough program. He was
considered a positive influence on other inmates, and volunteered
to perform tasks beyond his job assignments. Although he was
able to pass an electronics course with much effort, he was

unable to attain his GED diploma due to his intellectual
deficits.

3y all accounts, Martin was a shy, easily lead youth. who was
eager to please others. He performed numerous acts cof kindness
and geherosity., and was trusted by many (e.g. taking care of a
pregniant woman whose husband was away; walking his female
emplcyer hiome late at night, ete.). Although physically large,
he did not take advantage of his size and avoided physical
confrontations. He was always slow and lacked the maturity of

others in his age group. These persconality characteristics are
well documented in the background materials.

The murder. for which Martin is death sentenced occurred without
planning, premeditation, or design. It was the product of
Marcin's brief reactive psychosis, coupled with his life-long
intellectual and neurological deficits. As is clear from
background materials, especially police reports of Martin's
chactic thought processes and lack ¢f reality contact during and
following the offense. Martin's violent behavieor that night-was
neot goal-directed or the result of rational thought, cognition cor
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judgment. It was an aberrational event caused by a psychotic
process which rendered him unable to understand or assess reality
and to respond to the situation with any degree of reality-based
thought or judgment. With the waning of this psychotic process,
Martin became guilt-ridden and remorseful. This remorse is
documented in much of the background materials and was a feature
of my own interview and assessment of his current functioning,

B . al ] .

I have reviewed the file of Sidney Merin, Ph.D. This file
includes pg background material on Martin Grossman and no
offense-related reports or statements. It is clear that Dr.
Merin's assessment of Martin was based predeminantly on self-
report. Reliance on self-report falls below the standard of care
in vhe psycholcgical community for a competent forensic
gvaluation, and in this case undermined Dr. Merin's ability te
understand the emotional and mental disabilities suffered by
Martin Grossman, “he manner in which his life experiences
affected his psychology. and his mental functioning at the time
of the coffense.

Very truly yours,

A 4D

R. Brad Fisher., Ph.D
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Interashyp Ghiv State Universigy Hospitals and Ohio Department of Cottretions -
APA Prograz (Adolescene specializarion)

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE:

Director of Criminal Justice Rasource Cencer, Chasel Hill, Norcn Carolina.
Adoinistration of ETants and contracts far LTaining and research PIiZaraily in areas
{nterracing PEYthaelogy ma €rininal justice. Examples of sponeers include U.5.
Devarcmenc of Juacice. Sorch Carolina Adminigrrative Office af the Courts, tha Natienal
loszituce of Correecions, apg the Edna McComnell Clark Foundarion. 1979 - oresent.

Adjunct Ingtructiona) Starf, Duke University, 1582 - present,

Director of €linfca} Services, to Actlmg Dirgeror and Consultanc, DLllon Youth Cencer,
Sutner, Nerth Carolina. fesearch ang elinical serviems for unit wich 100 residents,
iacluding both emecional and behaviora} disturhances. Fall., 1377 - present.

Adjwnct Aseiscapz Profesgor of Psychology, lnivarsicy of North Carsifna, 1977 - 1981,

Assistant Profesmor of Psychology, Voiversiey of Alabama, 1976 ~ 1§77.

Assiscane Oirecter, Prisen Classificarion Projecz. Researeh ang Psvchological assessment

of Alabama’s prison PoPulaction direccad by the Universiey of Alabama Psycholosvy pepare-
Jene, 374 - 1977.

Assoclate Editor, Law and Psveholopy Raview, Loivezrsity of Alabama, Novemper 1273 - Augusc,
1975, .




EXNTLES OF TraCuINC EXFERIENCE.

Adoleacent Psychology, Univareicy of Nores Carolioa,

Persomality, Usiversity of Nerch Cazrolina.

law apd Psycnclag, with Stam Arodsky, “Biversity of Alabama,

incroductory Helping Skilis,

Voiversity of alsbana (3 coursa esphazizing videorape feadhack
for skill davalopmant),

Audlo-Vigual Madiy 1p Psychology Easaarch and Ingeruction, Iniversicy of Alabawa.

Introductory l’lyr.hnlou. Coiversity of Alsbama.

dudio-Visual Media f1p Peychology Research azg Iaatruceion, University of alabama. i

Iatroductory Psycholagy, Uoiversicy of Alapama.
Croup Processas, Southery Illinsig Daiversicy.

Treatment izsuag for tha violenr adolascant. Wo=day vorks
Noxth Caroling Juvvenils judgas. dabaville, Graspsbor

Serious juvenilsg offendars. Tates=day VoIkahop seriss tg Horth Carolina coure counszelors.
dabeville, Craansporo, Durham, Grasnville, NC, 19

~ presanc.
Classificacion modals .

hop serias for 4ccreditation to
©: and Durham, NC, 1981 ~ Présanc,

ITalning saminar az the Naciozal scadewy of Corrections Annusi
EXAMPLES OF RESEARCH EXPERIENCE

Fisher, B. nnd Demvuro, P. Ap analysis of adjudicared juvenits Programs and arceds; larroduction
of cew clawification and . Monograph Publ

typology carion of Florida Division of Healch asd
Rebabilicative Services, T . 1984,

Flaber, B., Raucy, H. 44 Neabict, C. Naciona) survey analysis of

lisues 1o Adminicreacion of Deatn
Row Uniti. Nadong) Institute of Jusrics Publicasian, Wagh

ingzon. D.C. 1n press
Fisher, £. uad Neabict, C. Laues ta AdminicTration of Destrh Row u

Proczerings of the American Cotrectional Auucuuan, 1987,

Flsher, B. Classification modeis for Puerte Rico - Federal Caurt Docum

AItE in the United States.

eat publication, 1986.

€Al concarns igvoiving pruteceive custody. In Proteerive Custody,
ACA - U5, Printing Ofrice, | 985

Pishar, B, STadicrion of Dangercus Bahavier for Adolescents, [n The Agpreszive Adolescent
Macmillan Books, 1986, ' -

?4sher, B, Pradicting adclascent viclenca, Proceedin

of the 90th Apnual Convenrion of ths
Ameyican Pn:uclogr.u Assoeclacion, Kashingcon, D.C. 1982

Pizher, B., Solomca, L., Friedman, J., and daird, C.

Abproasn. Publicarion of tha U.5. Departmenc o
Correcricns, 1981,

_ Fisher, B., Crockage, L. 1la

Prisom Classificavion: &4 Model Svecenms
£ Juatice, National lsatituce of

Fidler, p., Andreson, J., znd Fisher, 2. for Trearmene in Paveharherany,
Esalth Scipnres Cons

+ Undvarsity or Horen Carolina, 1981.

Grerel: Igaues
OxTium, Departmant gof Peychiacry

“leher, &., Popled, . D., and Eozub, D, Civil commitoant of minmers, In Mancal Health and che
Lav. Fublighed by the Commmicy Heoral Haalth Law Brojecc, Havark, ¥.J., 1580.

Pizber, 2., Cfaddock, 4., angd Pertin, . Clagsifirarinn Evaluation and GCuidelines. =.5.
“RLArTZen: of Justice, Naticaal Insziture of CoTracriong, L1381,
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Figher, 3, Hizrori

Eal Perepectives on Corrections. Monograpn ang Videotape training modula,
Edna McConneyl Clarg Founaation, |5g3.

Harris, H, ang Flsher, B, Henral neajcn services deliver

Y systems for juveniles, Proceedings
of the American Assoclarion of Child Psvchlarv, San Praneiges, 1983, -

Figsher, B. Tye PFYChologict as an AZEnt of gocya] change, Proceedines of the
Convention of The Amepien

89th Anpug)
D Piycholoeira) Aszactation, Log Angeies, 1561,
M

Fidler, D., Alezapger, S.. and Flher, B, The Minotaur, p

TOCe®dings of tha Anpuaj Meering o
the American Pevenjatric Assoctarien, Chicagg, Kay, 1579 —————sccumgof

Fisher, B, ang Fouler, R, P:ychnlcgls:s in a ComMmity-asrion Pragrazg.
Fall. 197a,

Southern Exvosyre '
-““h

vith developmaapz)

annual cenvenrion of the N
ities Cowneil, h‘ilmgton.

N.c., APril, 1978. Later Published ax L{on
March, R, and Fisbar, B. Alabamas Bound, Tuscalogaa:
-_H
(phucngrapm essay),

ORraph.

Vaiversicy of Aabans Press, 1977
Fisher, 3., Malltn, . and Farmar,

¥. Team Defenga,
Fisher, 3.

Fences. AacP Nenle:ter, Decenbar, 1977.
—“‘.—

I.nnovnunnn, 3, 3, Spring, 1978.
—amlllions

Ao analygiz of Ssx~bigy ipn ESychotherapy: Saven Scaces. Pro-
cesdings of ene al Convention 22 the Amarican Pevehaologiea) Asaceciatien,

Fisher, 3,, Brodsky, 5., and Corse, 5. Monizoring angd class
dures, Canrer for Carr

ificatton guidelines and proce-
ectionai Ptvehalch, 35, Hay, 1377,

Figher, 2, and ‘Corse, 3. :1uuf1u:1.on handhaook, Canter for Correctional Psvehaloey,
22, Maren, 1977,

Fishar, 8, g4 Brodaky, s, Priaon Classificarion Projece: SumEIATY and Zaterials. Center
for Correcctonal Esvchology, 21, Jasuary, 1977,

Fowlar, R, and Figher, g, Prizson vores. APA Montrer,
‘—'-—-—____

Z, 9, Ocrobder, 197¢.
Fisher, 3, and Rogers, B.

Philliocs Brooks House, Harvard Unl.\rlr::l.t'y. 8
“M —
Helvin, &,B., Fisher, B., ang Corza, 5. 1h, Chalkvilla Inseicuction for Girls: A demographie
study, Comtinuing Eduearion Center, Uivaraity pf Alabama, 20, June, 1975.
Cliftaa, L., Fishar, 3, , learning €XPeriment i cerrectiona] Peycholegy. Center for
Correcrional Prvehnlagy, 12, May, 1974,
_“*M L

Juvenile diapnoseic CATAZOTiax.

oTth Caroling Digabil-




EXAMPLES OF PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS

Fisher, B, Proposal for o new typology of adjudicatad TOULk. Report sponsored by the American
Clvil Liberties Unlon: in connectign With Bobbv M_ v Fi. aag Morzles v. Teras cALex, | 986,
—_ﬁ -_“_

Fisher, B. Anmiveis of stngle ceil needs i Texas institucions bader coagtruction and pProposas,
Report for U, s, Department of Justice, 1986,

Fisher, B. ljencay bealth placement ang trslvmant for NGRI (por BulTy by reason of (meanity)
in Louisiann, Reporr for the Unitea States Deparement of Justice. 1985,

Fisher, B. Priscner Classificarion and mearg; health services Progress (n New Mexico - 980.86

Report spontored by U.S. Justice Departmens tesulting from grane to develop classificarion
model (Pisber Instrument) for this state in 1980,

Fizsher, B, Classification lssues) variarions (o jurventle trpologies, [nvited prezentation to
the Srookingy Instizate, Washington, D.C, 12/5/a6

|
| Piher, 8, ang Ney. S. Approaches ror Clamsificarion revisions basad on computer analysis,
Presestation ta the Soutn Carcline Deapremeac or Cortections, 9/14/85.

Fisher, B, ang Crane, R. Legal ssues 18 admiaiscration of PIOTEctive custody classificarion.
{ Prescatation to the Natigns) Acsdemy of Correct » 4/23-4/16/85, Bouldes, Colorada.

Bagon, G., Crisp, H, ana Plaher, B, Evolving zuges in identitication of Wiilje M, clisngg,
and program liskage nasds, Presencarion to the N.C. Psychol. Assoc, 338784 Wrightaville B,

Flsber, B. Special aeedy Assemament proposal for Youth on Death Row unies. Presentarion st
The Narioaal Academy of Corrections., 9/27/84

Harris, H., and Flsher, B, Liaking systems tor dealing wich Rultthandicapped and aggressive
Touth. Preseatacien 1o N.C, Juvanile Sarvices Administrarion. Charlotes, Oct. 1984,

Flsher. B, Interview techniques with Sdolescents. Pang} at Divisicn of Youth Sarvices convention
At tie Mckimmon Center tn Raletgn, 1/12/54

Fisher, B. ang Lavinaon, R. lsiues for clamification of Youchful offenders and adules, Invited address
o NCCU Symposium on Crimina) Justice, April 7eh, 1983,

Figher, B, Devaloping a classification model, National Academy of Correctioms, February
-8, 1933, Bouldar, Colsrado,

fisher, B. Evaluacion of classtificarion in Texas Duparmaant of Corrections for the U.S,
Deparement of Justice, 1983.

Fisher, B, Evalustion of Frotactiva custody lssuas iz Gaorgis Daparrmans of Correcticas
for the Offica of tha Specia} Hemtitor, 1982,

Fisher. B. E.{n:nn'cu. Perspectives op Cortectioma; Homograph, slidas Presencation, and
videotape. Prom grant threugh the Edpa McConpeil Clark Fowndation, 1982.

Fisher, B. Evaluation of classificarion Pratticas 1in Cook Counry Deparrmenr of Correcrions
{Chicago) for the U.§. Departmeny of Justies, 1982,

! Fisher, 3. Evalvation of Mencal Haalth Sarvices iz thy Feliciana Forensic Fscility for
the U.S. Departmnr of Jusrice. 1982,




Fisher, B, Eehavigral mansgement of the vislen

dealing vith the serious juvenile offmsader. Thae Insticute of Covermmenr, Chapel BHil1),
NC. October 13, 1580,

Fisher, B., agd Varley, W
Conference on the Aggressive Adolescent, Duke

t adolescent, Presentacisn ar conference

+ Behavior managepenr vith the aggressive adolescent. Natioma)

Univzrs:.:y. Ocrober 30, 1981.
Fisher, Bg. Effects of overcrowding in prigon. Presenzacion to Noreh Careling Couticil on
Alternacives rp Incarcaration. Chapel H111, NE.

Oczober 24, 1987,
Fisher, B. aung Fidler, D. Daaling wich exXtreme grreag ig teenagern.
to the North Careling Council of Family snd Marriag
Harris, B. and Fishar, §,

Davelopmsnes) coticepex

Videstape and 1ul:url_

8 Therapiscs, Boonme, NC. September !
for normal apg abnormal adolascency.

Presentation o tha Federa) Corractional lnatitucton, Butner, NC. September 23, 1330,

Barris, H. and Flaher, &, Scraening, &valuation, aagd tefe
Sencation ta Conferenca o0 Adslescence by the Muns:rat:hn Office of the Courrs
Asheville, NC, July 4, 1980,

Fisher, 3, “hanging P&TwDRctives in desling yish distur

bed yourn. Presentation o Memphisg
itate Universicy Conference op Adoiascenc Devalopament, Mewphis. apry] 22, 1980.

Flsher, 5. e Prediction of vicluice. Prasanration o Anmgg) Hesting of Florida Digeripe
Judgex, February 31, 1980,

Fisher, 3,
shop fop
15, 979,

The usas of videotapa in Psyeholaogiral Tesearch and inseruccisn. Two~day worik-
Pe¥cholegy atudencs, Univeuuy of Norgh Caroiing ae Chapel H111. July 14 and

Fishar, 3, Quanging crends in adolescane Viclence, Capital Haajeh g
Adolescent lasuas ip Noren Garviina, ‘Baleigh, Juge 10, 1979,

Fidler, ., Alexandar, 5.y and Fisher, 3. e Minoraur., 4 Presencation atc the Annual Meating
of the Amaricgp Meating of the Amertcan Peychiacrig Associacion, Chicage, May, 1379,

Fishar, B. Some models fpe adalescant Tesldeneiy) traatmane, 4
th Conference, Fayaczaville, April, 1979,
B., and umndtr. 5. Dobra

Yatems Conferenca on

PAper presented to the Sauch
Fidler. D., Figher,

= A casm study of vigua] edEy losa 1o an
ddolescene. 4 videacape Presantad to chy Assoctacion for Academie Paychiarry, Chazlescon.
Maren, 1979,
Figher, 8.

and Keamey, i, Divergzent concants 22 d.o.o ‘v viDLent apg Roaviclent youtn,
A Paper prasenced to cha symposium "Tha Chilg &nd Deatn™ (NIMH), New York (Calumpia
ioilversicy), Jamuary, 1979,

Figher, . Tresacment of thae ®=ulti-hg
sented to the North Caruling Fducacions

Figher, 3. Developin
Yaper and videoty
1378,

S&ttings. A paper pre-
October, 1978,

tha adolescene 1n nental healeh sectings,
“oniersnce gn Adolescence, Raleigh. Ssprechey,

1 Auncuu.nn. Boocue, NO,

Fisher, B, Program considerationa fer children 1n Tesidencia) centers with developmentz)]
digabilicyes, A paper bresented o the annual conventinn of the North Carolina Disabile
szies Councyy, Wllaingecn, N,c. Apral, 1978,

Fither, B, Tne COREMDILY 84 & resourca for cha

adolescency, Presentacion 0 the Commm

developmenr of resideneis) sectings for
Januare, 197g.

ity Menta) Heaich Law Project, Newardk, N.j.

Fisher, 3, Program considerationc for children 1p Tesidential cencers with deveicpmencal
disabiligies, A paper presenced Lo ctha anmuaj coovenrion of the North Carnlina [fsabil-
ities Counesil, Wilmingeon, April, 1978,

Fisher, 3, Making your clisnt more human, 4 paper pr

esanted ta thy Association of Crimipaj
Jefenge lLawvers, 5c. Sizmon's Ialang, Haren, 1g7a,
izky, 5, apd Fisher, B.

Ptychology 8t the interface of
seated st the Besting o

f the American Secinlogical Con

2- Zoue vroblems 1n the prediccion of danmeroug
‘risom Crisig Hobllizarion Nerworg, Columbyg,

law and €orrecrions. Paper PrE—
Vention, aclanrsz, Novemner, 1577.
behavior,

?ipar presented o chs
October, 1377,
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fowvier, R,D., 4nd Figher, 3. Academia 1n Commmity applicariom, 4 videotape snd glide -1 4 =
SENCALLION ar the Fayehology Spemker Seriea, Vniversity, Alabamg. Mazwch, 1977,

Brodsky, A. and Figher, B, Sex~hisg ip tharapy: Seven ncangg, -Plpl.t Aad videocape pPre—

SEnted ap the meeting of the American Pryehological Associacign, Division 29, Orlando.
February, 1377,

Prentice-Dunn, 5., 2nd Fisher, B. Graduated Euldance wigh Tetarded children. 4 videocape
Presantes ac the Fartiow Stace Schooi, February, 1977. Library catalog J-67-71,

Fisher, 8. mha Spplicarions of the MPI to an sdolescent populacicn. Paper pressnted tn the

Ohilo Stare Voilversicy Deparcoent of PeychistTy<Grand Rounds, Columbug, Chio, December,
1975, '

Fisher, B. art therapy utilizacion with an in-patisnt cthild populseian. Papar and slide

Presentacisa delivered to the Department of mmilg Peychiacry, Ohio Stare Uailversizy
Hospirzlg, Columbua, Ontg. Cezober, 197%,

RESEARCH AND TRAINING VIDEQOTAPES:

“he following 1z a lisz of videotives used for training in the Worth Cazolina Department ef
Psycniscry ynder tha cvarall direcction of Dy, Donaid Fidlsr. Although deveicped primarily
LOT traiginog at che University of Noreh Cazpiigg School of Medicine, they have been digtrise

uzed for training elsewvhare by the Haaith Sclanes Consarciwm and are produced by the Medical
Sclences Teaching Laborarories in Chapel Hi1],

Cretel: Tssuey for Fg_ghatnnnzg: Training snd daseription of friticel arages and compon-
anLE of PSychiothesapy. Ona hour, cologz, 374" cassatre. 1981,

Moonmcones: Dramarge Presantacion of {egues sucouncered by the PoYshiatric rasident 1in deaj~

ing with a sarinyg adolascant offander. One hour and thirty minuges, eolor, 1/4" casgecta,
1981.

luacion angd Commitmenit: For training in casss iovalving iovolimeary Commitmanr. 20 mine
ucas, color, 3767 cissmrca, 1940.

HBypnosis: Training tape in isayes for hypnosis in pEYchiacris training, including higcorizal
PeIEpecTiva. 30 minutas, color. 3/4" cassetca. 1980,

The Menral Stsrus latayviow: Prasentscion of Actual cases Sarrving differenr DSM IIT diag~
Q0fes. Adult patients from Dofothes Dix Hospical, sdolescent patisnts from Diliom
School. FZaeh case Approximataly 20 Biouces, color, /4" casaatte. 1980,

Mimotaur: Traiming Caoe for Yamusa relared oo ono VARSI Filimae. -2 mlBuUCES. LOLOT, i
ceasette, 1379,

Dobro: Presencacion of rape unm.lv!.ng omureclogical impairment in 20 adolegcest. 22 sinyutes,
color, 3,47 casastte, 1979

PROFESSIONAL AND JOURNAL AFFILIATIONS:

American Psychologieal Association (mamdar) - Division 12 (clinigal)

Divigion 4l (law agg Psychology)
American ABsociztion of Corracriona] Peychologices (nember)
Canter for Eyrly Adelescance, Chape] Hill, NC (fellow) 1978=prasent
Capitol Heaith System'‘s Advisory Councyl: Task Forca on Juvenils Justice (nember) 1978-80
N.C. Council of Child Paychiatry, Tesk Force on the AsgTensive Adolescenr (mewher)

Adolescent Day Trearmens Program: Coommicy Guidance Clinic, Duke Uciversicy (advigory
board wembaer)

Otange County Youth Tamk Foree (member)

Articie Review Editer, Crimina) Justice and Behaviez, 197&=present.
Southesszarn Prychologleal Associstion (mewbar)

Noreh Carolima Payenological Association (nember)
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EXAMPLES oF EXPERT TESTIMONY AND EVALUATION
1987

CA. v Charies Eirse, (A-~092979) . Cagrr testimony regarding research connecring parencal
physical abuge and Violence patentta)

GA. v Holloway - C.a. 83-126 - U.D. Ga. Testimony concerning effects of retargacion tevei
On valuntary contession .

N.C. v Ueshyr 86 CRS 118 Coure testimony fegrrding icsues in adolescent developmencal
=k Loshyr
disturtagce ang competency as adult in a capital cass. -

F1. v Fltzoarriex BO-1281-E. losaniey Possibly due tn Incarceration effeces ax clemency facror
IR capital cage,

Shapiey v_ NV, {CU-R-79-162-ECR Evaluation of Srate Correcrional and Menca) Healrh
Classificarion 1ecues including juvenile applicarions.

Baker v. [daho {84-1256), Evaluarion of effects of misdiagnocis and misclassification 1n cage
lnvolving community viotence from teleassd prisoner,

Brown v Ysine {CU-R87), Overview evaluacion of prisoner and patient releage pracrices in
the state of Maipe,

1986

H.C. v Mancusa . Testimony Concerring adolescent developmental disturbances i connection
With capital crime and Inzanicy plea,

Carter v. Marke. Statewide evaluation (Penosyiventa) of ag) institucionalized adules claiming insutficiant
treatment and diagnoeis for Poct Traumatic Stress Dlorder,

N.C. v. Rook. Evaluation of effecty of luventie incarceracion and parental abucs on tarer
Criminai vioience and drug aduse porential, .

R S T

Smet teo 4 iurid, Sragewige Cvatuation of ajl programs for adjudicated vouth. Two
Year anaiyes OY panei of three CXperts wich Dr. Figher ag member,

CA. v Tholmer (A396284), Evaiuation ang testimony concerning effecre of abandonment ang
luvenile incarcetatioy nn adult meaca; stagug,

Rulz v. Procunter, Evaluacion ana report (or Ul 8, Juseice Department concerning single
celling needs for the Etate of Tezag.

N.C. v. Alexander. Court-ordereg (Amicus) evatuaticn anc testimony concerning special
placement needs for aggressive/retarded yourh,

14.C. v. Amberson (86CRS-85252-85262) Evaluation apd TEPOrt concerrning effects of learning
disabitities on behsvior of adolescent 1n a capital cage.

1985

———
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LXAMPIES oF EXPERT TESTIMONY AND EVALUATION:
1984

Ruir v, Estelle, H~7B=-98V-Ca (5.D. Tex.). Study of Mengpa] Hsalch seads for Texas prison syg-
tem.  U.5. Departmemt of Justice,

Abraham v. Uaghoe Counr CVY-RB2-079BRTT Evaluation ang FEROYC on Mental Heaith and
tlasgificarion S4fvices in Renc County, Nevmda jall.

19B3:

Ruir v, Estelle, H=78=987-Ca (5.0, Tex.). Evaluacion of Slogle celling needs in Texas prisen
Eystem., U.5. Department of Juscice,

Y. Thedes, CACI. 78 - 22050 . Reevaluacion and TeaTiZONY concerning Menral Health

Services ang ovarcrewding in the Chip Deparemene of Correesiong. UV.S. Department oi
“ustice.

| i¥. Johmson, UBSCS EDMBO=7358 (Mich.), Evaluscion of Mencal Healrh Services in the
-«Chigan Departmenr of Corrections. {1983-1984)

~9B2:

U.S. v. Elred, c.a. T6~Ceé768 (N.D. I111.). Evaluarien for tha v.S. Department of Jusrice of
classificarion apg ovarcrowding 1ssues 1n ths Cook Counzy D.O.C.

yonigh v. Carzs, SA=7InCA-59, Evalusction for the U.S. Departmens of Justice of classifia-
CALlon ang overcrowding of the San Antenig Jagl,

Shapley v, Housevrighe, 77-0221 BEC (Nev.). Evaluation of prisen toodicions and classificz-
ticn in the Newads State Prizon, .

Guthris v. Fvang Bvaluacion of PIRERczive custody Lfysues for the Ceorgia Scate
—— V. TVADS
Prison.
Vindas v. Boosalis (Neb.) Evaluacion of Lineoln Coungy Jai].
———— - fooEalis
iE¥ites i iavi.efd 3oce a.) Tescamony eetcerning effects of child sbuse ang

PT180n adjustment in capiczl cass.

H.C. =. Amin Abdullan (R.C.) Testinony concarning prisan sdjystmmne pocencial.

Badix v, Johnson. USDC B 8O 713581 Oizh, ) Bvaluacion of Classificarion gnd m¢ntal health
Services in the State Prison ac Jackson, Michigan, ‘

Witke v. Crow} (1d.) Evaluation of tomditiche and claseificarion in Idaho's women's
ATiS0D zyECaw,

York v. Japvis, CBl-1694a {Ga.) Evaluation of mezcal heajlth Services and clagsifirarion io
tha Dekalb County Jail,

198Y:
CAorerino v. Wilson, C.A. C30-0545-1(J) (W.D. Ky.) Evaluarien concerning effects of classi-
ficaticn apa everarovding iz Kentucky voman ‘s prigag E¥stenm.

thavwan v. Clark, C.ga. 79-3192 {(D.C.N.J.3 Evaluaripgn cemcerning classificacion ang effeccs
ag aversrowding in Jeraay City Jai].

Duran v. apodacs. Cogoing evaluation for the U, S. Daparrment of Juatice, Hatiopal Ioszizuza
——'—‘—_-__

ot Correetions, god TEvision of astare clagsificaring Processes pursuant o congent
lecree encereq 871780, (1980-prenene)




R. Brad Fisher, Page nine

Florida v. Morean.

Evalyacion ang COurt tescimany coucerning prigon adjuscment ang violenca
Patentizl, Miamg,

flarida v, Yaile, Evaluarion gng Ceatimony concerning prizen adjustmant ang violencs pocen-
tial, Miamy,

Srigshy v, Arkangay, PB-C-78-32 (r.p, Atk.) Cayre tearimeny sod repore coucerning possible
JUry seleccion blas in Capital cage Process, Lirtle Rock {1979-81),

Crubbs v. Bradley. C.A. 80-3404 (N.p. Ten..) Evmluation azd testimony Concarming clagmifi.
cation Ior the Tennassse Departmene of Correctionsy.

Kepdrick v. Carppl:, Evaluation of classificagion PTOCessss and prison conditions for the
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St. Petersburg, Florida

RE: State of Florida vs.

Dear Mr. McCoun:

33701

Martin Edward Grossman

I have had the opportunity to examine, interview and
observe your client, Mr. Martin Grossman. I have
spent many hours with the young man, and in addition,
administered and interpreted a battery of psycholo-

gical tests.

In view of what Mr. Grossman tells me, how he says it,

his emotional reactions,

his mental status and the re-

sults of the psychological examinations, it would be
my epinion my findings would not be helpful to your
defense position in either the guilt or innocense

phase or, if it is held,
I would be happy to confer

Mr. Grossman's trial.

the sentencing phase of

with you and go into detail with regard to my findings.
As I indicated to you at our conference on August 27,
1985, 1 was obtaining examination results which did
not appear to be helpful initially. I had proposed to
return to the jail for more consultations with Martin,

and did so for a number

of hours on September 11, 1985.

Following those last consultations with him, and com-

bining that with all of
unlikely the material I
ful. Nevertheless, you

whirh T am nat nrivu +n

my other findings, it would be
have available would be help-
may be aware of scme elements

Ar hawa nat+t ~ancidavod and
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pérhaps would prefer to discuss all that is known about
Mr. Grossman.

I have taken the iiberty of attaching this letter to the
history Martin Grossman presented to me. Note, there is
nothing typed which involves any of my psychological
testing, my conclusions, or opinions. What has been
typed is virtually, word for word, material he had pre-
sented to me.

1 would be happy to talk with you if you feel it advan-
tageous to do so.

Thank you very much for the opportunity to examine
Martin Grossman. I regret not being able to help you
as [ have in other cases.

With best wishes, [ am,

Sincereiy yours,
«f”;zzz‘“fzji' Oﬂ. /4211quuu~%/z’525<1;9
Sidney Merin, Ph.D. ‘

SJIM/sm




PRESENTED HISTORY BY MARTIN GROSSMAN

Mr. Grossman was asked to describe, in the best manner he could,
what had cccurred at the time of the shooting incident, begin-
ning with the day and date. He reports on Thursday, December
13, 1984, he arose from sleep at about 11 a.m. to 12 noon. At
2 to 3 p.m., he drove tu his friend's home, co-defendant Thome
Taylior, who lived approximately one mile away. The two men
then drove around New Port Richey looking for something to do
seeking either girls or any friends they might meet. At about
5 p.m. the two went to the defendant's home. He was to drive .
his mother to work. While he did so, sometime between 5:30 and
5:45 p.m., Thome and Brian Hancock, a friend of the family,
remained at the defendant's home. Brian had apparently run
afoul of his own parents and was invited to live with the
defendant. Brian apparently paid $30 to $35 per week for room
and board living with Martin. Brian apparently came to 1ive
with Martin some two months eariier. However, Brian lost his
job and simply stayed around Martin's home for about two weeks.
He eventually went to work for the defendant's uncle.

Upon Martin's return home at about 5:45, he found Brian and Thome
working on a car they were all repairing. At approximately 6:20
p.m. Brian showered while Martin and Thome sat about watching
television. At 7 p.m. Brian informed them he was to meet saome-
one later at 10 p.m. for the purpose of selling the 9 milimeter
gun which allegedly belonged to Brian's father. Brian was dis-
cussing this and the price on the telephone with an unknown
party. At that point, the defendant went out into the field
behind the house where he had secreted that gun by wrapping it
in about three plastic bags and burying it at a depth af ap~
oraximatelv two tn thres ferat. He hrnuaht the aun intn the
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fired a -9 milimeter gun and wanted to test its power. He could
not answer why he did not fire it at the nearby field, other
than to note he did not want anymore hassies with his neighbors.

Martin and Thome drove around for 25 minutes and found themselves
on Highway 584. It was fairly desolate at that time. They drove
on to Perrine Rand Road, a paved county road. They planned to
stop at a river bank and fire the weapon, but found too much
traffic around them. They continued on toward Oldsmar, passing
the area of the shooting and going on to Boy Scout Road in
Oldsmar. There were still too many cars around for them to

stop and fire the weapon. They started back and came upon
Covered Bridge Estates, an undeveloped subdivision.

Martin Grossman defines the following as being the most important
part of his narration, yet the "stupidest" part of the entire
drive. Just off the main road were signs warning against tres-
passing. Those signs were observed by Martin and Thome when he
turned on the spotlight of his vehicle. He notes he stopped,
hesitated and considered he had some sort of 'sixth sense--some-
thing told me not to go in and the other side of me said go
ahead". The defendant continued on, driving some two to three
miles back on the road, coming to a dead end and an improved
road. There was an oid refrigerator nearby and Martin shined
the spotlight on it. He handed the 14ight to Thome and took the
gun out from under the driver's seat. He had it in his hand
and asked Thome if he were prepared to see what the gun would
do to the refrigerator.

At that point in the events, Martin observed a light somewherse
on the road in the distance. He quickly put out the headlights
of his vehicle and Thome turned off the spotlight. The defendant
had observed brakelights in the distance. A moment later he
decided to drive away and turned on his high beams. He did not
tike the idea of any other car being around. He did not want
the muzzle flash or the noise to concern anyone when the gun

was fired. Some ten yards on, he observed bright lights coming
at him very rapidly. He thought it might be a hunter or somecne
with a girl or someone "smoking 2 joint". He then saw the spot-
1ight turn on by the on-coming vehicle and saw the blue flashing
police 1ight. Martin states he "stopped and froze". He was
startled by the spotlight and the blue lights. The oncoming
vehicle stopped some ten yards in front of them. Martin re-
placed the gun beneath the seat and had the clip of bullets 1in
his pockets. He told Thome "to be cool and not to worry".

A fiadure emeraed fram the trurk which had annvnarhed them. The
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He answered they were sitting there 1istening to their stereo.
She asked if he had any guns in the vehicle and the defendant
answered in the negative. He calculated if he simply showed
her his driver's license and she ran a check on him, he would
then be permitted to go on. She asked for his license which

he handed to her. She asked Thome if he had a driver's license,
which he did not have. The officer then allegedly asked the
defendant to exit the van and to turn off the engine, which the
two then did. The defendant was ordered to stand between the
two vehicles and Thome was told to move to the van's passenger
side. The officer then flashed her 1ight about the inside of
the van to determine if anyone else were there, in Martin's
gpinion. Martin stated the officer continued around the
vehicie doing the same thing.

It was at that point the defendant considered Thome was becoming
“nervous” and allegedly came up behind the officer and locked
over her shoulder. The defendant believes the officer became
aroused with concern and ordered Thome back. Thome did not
retreat. The officer allegedly looked inside the cab sectien

of the driver's side and found the weapon Martin had placed
under the seat. Whereupon, according to Martin, she is alleged
to have said, "ahah!“., She began to walk back to her vehicle.
Each of the youths looked at each other with surprise that she
had found the gun. The defendant followed her as she went to
the driver's side of her vehicle. She sat in her truck and
looked at the defendant, when the defendant asked her to wait

a moment to explain that the weapon was not his. She answered
tn 2 manner suggesting she did not believe him. The defendant
asked him to give him a break since he was on probation. He
attempted to again explain the ownership of the gun, but at that
poeint she announced that he was under arrest and that she did
not wish to hear what he had to say.

Martin argued with the officer concerning her having arrested

him, stating he had done nothing. She picked up her radio,

apparently to report him. At that point she had the defendant's

gun, his van keys and his license. Martin states he was about

to say something to Thome, but was asked to stay where he was.

The officer allegedly told him if he continued in his behavior, _
she would put handcuffs onm him. Martin states he ignored her. |
She reached for a different radio. It was then the defendant |
leaned into her truck, grabbed her in a bear hug, pulling her

away from the radio so that she could not say anything. She

dropped the radio microphone and said, "what the hell you doing~,

and began to struggle in an attempt to force Martin to let go.

The two fought some 15 to 20 seconds when the defendant called

to Thome who quickly came over. Thome allegedlv said. "what
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retrieving his gun. He apparently grabbed at the wrong side
of the officer's service belt and came up without the gun.
The physical fight continued with increased intensity and
Martin struck her several times with his fists. He does not
know where his blows struck. Thome tried toc get her gun
again, but she kicked Thome in the groin.

Martin continues by stating the fight intensified further when

he then grabbed her flashlight. She was stil1 in her truck

as this went on. He struck her several blows to the head with

her flashlight, in an effort to "knock her out". By doing so,
could then gather his belongings and leave. The fight continued
and he continued to strike her with the flashlight, probably he
believes, "six or eight times total, maybe more--I don't remember".
He stated to Thome, "she won't go down".

It was.at that point in the melee' Martin observed the reflection
of the officer's chrome gun. He also observed Thome attempting
to hold her hand down, in which hand she held her gun. Martin
thought to himself he had to stop that gun from moving about
before it discharged. The barrel of the gun continued to move

in a direction pointing toward him and he knew he had to stop it.
He could not believe her strength. Both Thome and the defendant
were attempting to hold down her hand, yet it continued to move.
The gun then discharged in "a deafening sound". The officer
continued to fight even though Martin stated he could no longer
hear because of the dulling effect of the gun blast.

The defendant went on to state, “"suddenly, it was a weird and
different world---no sound at all", He states he struck the
officer on the side of her head with his fists two or three times.
The gun discharged again. He had the feeling none of this was
happening, because suddenly "she quit--she stopped the fight--
everyone stopped".

The defendant recalls being positioned over the top of the officer,
but he could not see anything, "as though my mind refused to see
what was going on". Thome was not there. He had already returned
te the van and called to the defendant to get out of there.

Martin states he did not know what happened to the officer. He
did not know if she had been hit by a bullet or he had knocked
her out with blows to her head. The defendant ran back to the
van. MNeither he nor Thome tried to determine what happened to
the officer. He knew he had to retrieve his license and the van
keys. When he returned to the officer's truck, he found her
partially lyina outside the trurk. He cparrhad frantirallv fne
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White at the truck, Martin looked down at the officer. He
knew she was there, but found it hard to believe she went
from being inside her vehicle to the ocutside of the truck.
He could not see her face initially. He began to "shake"
and then looked at her again and observed her looking
direct1y at him, "1ike she was trying to jook right through
me" .

Martin states he then ran to the van where Thome had both
guns, the 9 milimeter and the officer‘s gun. The defendant
started the engine of the van and left. He had the officer's
gun on his lap as they sped away. Upon returning to his home,
the two ran into the house. There he was struck by the enorm-
jty of what had occurred. He was blood on him and told Brian
a story of being in a fight and that the gun discharged.

DEVELOPMENTAL HISTORY:

Martin states he was born in San Antonjo, Texas, moving to
Florida while an infant. He moved later from Miami to New
Port Richey some seven years ago.

The defendant's father, Richard Alan Grossman, died at age 52
some four years ago. The defendant's father was retired Navy
and Air Force man who was 100% disabled following an automobile
accident, That accident took place when the defendant was two
yvears old. His father had difficulty ambulating. Father and
son had a good relationship. HKis father was not a strict man
but the two could differ., Because of the father's disability,
he could net engage im many physical requirements and activities
with the defendant. Martin perceived his father as having
taught him about cars, fishing, sports and other activities.

The defendant's mother is 53 years of age and is a secretary
at a dance studio. He describes her as being a very religious
woman who saw t¢ it that he attended religious services and
after school religious classes. She is a sensitive woman, a
worrier who was aiways concerned in his associations and in
his school work. Martin states he rebelled against anyone
telling him what he should do in life. He was of the opinion
no ane listened to what he wanted, but rather were inciined to
impose their ideas on him. He describes his mother as being 3
loving and protective person. Apparently, the maternal grand-
father also played a role in Martin's 1ife. The grandfather
was a welterweight world boxing champion and wanted Martin to
go into boxing or into the military service. Many othet
members of the familv had haan in thas milidany Ttha

e mm A e -
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Martin is an only child. The immediate and extended family
were very close. They always vacationed together and enjoyed
similar recreational activities.

EDUCATIONAL HISTORY:

Martin completed grade 9. It was during that year his father

died and the subject immediately quit schcol. He had been told
by a school counsellor that he could, with parental permission
quit school legally. He obtained that permission from his mother.
The defendant later returned to grade 9, having only to complete
one half year and then was told he would immediately go into

grade 10 half way through that year. During the year when he
should have started grade 10, the subject states he attended
probably no more than 20 days of the whole school year.

SOCIAL DEVELOPMENT:

The defendant states that by the time he was in the 9th grade
he was already involved in the use of drugs and alcohol. He
was drinking a fifth of whiskey in a night or two. He obtained
money, aloeng with his friends, through doing lawns and stealing
money from his mother. WKith that money, he would buy marijuana
and with his group they would have "pot parties”. By that time
he had already obtained a TransAm automobile at age 15, given
te him by his parents. He and his friends would engage in
numerous burglaries wherein he could obtain either drugs directly
from the burglaries or he could steal tools, cameras and other
items he could quickly convert to a few dollars in order to buy
drugs and alchohol. He estimates he had engaged in some 25
burgiaries. He would commit the burglaries by breaking the
window, prying a window open or cutting a screen.

By the time Martin returned to grade 10, he was already deeply
invoived in the increased use of drugs. He decided not to
attend that first day of classes in grade 10. It was his
opinion the Tirst day was a "natural skip day” ard it was
generally expected that students would not show up for class
on that first day. The defendant traded his TransAm for a new
Datsun 280ZX. That "fancy" car impressed others and drew many
girls to him and seemed to impress others who were also using
drugs. Martin states "I was overwhelmed with the attention--
something I always wanted when I was l1ittle".

In telling his story, Martin states he was always competing
to achieve "respect”. He thought he c¢could gain respect by
having the nicest car. iewelrv. clathes and manev. He wantad
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and be the center of attention. He recalled his first day in
grade 10 when he drove into the school parking area with four
of the prettiest girls in his new car. When others saw him
he was so taken by the attention of all that drew from friends
and other student, he decided not to go on to school since
this was more exciting than attending classes. "I Tike to
show off a2 Tot". He would drive by the school Jjust to have
pecpie stop and look at him and his car. As he drove by his
stereo was always turned up loud, his windows down and he
would speed into the school parking lot, often spinning his
car around and "doing 360's".

The subject states he went to all football games. On two
occasions, in two different games, Martin drove his automobile
onto the playing field at half time while the band and cthers
were performing, stating he would "spin around and tear up the

field until they chased me". He states he was known as a
person who used drugs and alcohol and was “crazy to do something
like that“. He was never arrested for any of that type of

mischief nor any of the 25 or so burglaries in which he had
engaged. He states "I was a juvenile Burt Reynolds--always
wanted to show off".

Approximately one month after school started, the defendant did
return to the 10th grade sporadically, but again attended quite
minimally throughout the entire year. He states he had no
problems with reading. In retrospect, he became bored by the
fifth grade when it was his opinion the State of Florida had

no adequate school curriculum and he discovered he was being
taught the same material year after year. It was then he began
to "slack off".

Martin states he and his family moved to New Port Richey when he
was in grade 8. There he found the atmosphere much mere inviting
for school and his teachers seemed to have more time for their
students, in contrast to what he observed in the Miami school
area. His interests were in history and science. He would find
himself in conflict with his peers regarding classroom assign-
ments, seating arrangements and which student could perform best.

By the end of the 10th grade year, Martin began to engage in more
criminal activity. He became involved with a more "rowdy bunch”.
Burglaries, grand thefts, vandalism, such as lawn jobs where he
and his friends would tear up lawns with their cars, were engaged
in. They would steal road signs, entire soft drink machines and
newspaper dispensers. There was mutual harrassment of and by

the Clearwater Beach Patrol. He then beoan to receive speedina
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The subject remained home from school during his 10th grade year,
often sleeping in late. His mother, still in mourning over the
loss of her husband, did not press him to attend school or have
any conflicts with him regarding discipiine. He began to go to
bars. Because of his size and his mustache he states he appeared
older. He would wander about all night from county to county,
looking for places to listen to music. He would do this with
groups of other boys and giris in a caravan of up to five cars.
They would be out "just looking for fun". By this time, he was
using some heavy drugs, such as PCP, Heroine, LSD, Cocaine, and
and variety of barbituates and amphetamines. "I was Tooking for
anything to make me feel different, toc hide from my deep inner
thoughts". He relates those inner thoughts to his loss of his
father. He wanted to do the right thing, but “I had already
tasted life in the fast lane". It had a tenacious hold on him
which he was ambivolent about letting go.

Martin states he had eight to twelve different girl friends, all
of whom he “tried to play at the same time--a Don Juan". He was
mest sexually active while on Cocaine and would have sexual re-
lations with a variety of girls as often as 12 times a week.

At age 17, the defendant was acting as a security guard for a
Tarpon Springs movie theater. He would bring in three to four
car loads of friends through the back door without paying. One
evening, several of his male friends arrived with two girls.
The girls seemed quite impressed with his car, his uniform and
the power he had to allow these people into the theater free,
At about 9 p.m., he met a girl who had just had a pass made at
her by her date. She came to Martin's Datsum which was tempo-
rarily marked as a security patrol vehicle. He offered her and
her female friend a ride home later after he got off work. It
was the first girl whose house he was supposed to have bur-
glarized some six months Tater. :

Martin states he eventually quit his job and became even more
deeply involved in drugs. He obtained money by dealing in
drugs. He found himself buying those substances from a number
of Pasco County Sheriff's Deputies who ailegedly obtained the
drugs by confiscating them from known drug users or dealers.

The subject states at times he and three to four other security
guards would drive around flashing blue 1ights which they had
purchased at Radio Shack. They would stop people, particularly
girls and impersonate police officers in uniform, He notes he
never identified himself as an nffirar. hut knew hic unifarm.
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official. The stops were made on false reasons, the purpose
being to Tearn the names and telephone numbers of the girls,
whom he would later call.

In June, 1982, Martin left his mother's home and moved in with
several friends whom he had met at a party. His part of the
room payment was to assure the others he would find them good
drug deals. He continued to use drugs and aiso use his mother’s
credit card to buy gasoline. He often purchased up to $300
worth of beer at one time with that credit card. On one occa-
sion, he purchased $600 worth of beer without being asked to
prove his identity.

Wild parties were developed. Friends and neighbors would give
him $1,000 to $5,000 to purchase Cocaine. For that, he was
given in return some of the drugs as payment. He would travel
to Tampa, Fort Myers and Miami to purchase drugs. His largest
purchase was some 25 pounds of 89% Peruvian Cocaine. The
purchases were made for a number of different individuals in-
¢luding business people, police officers, school teachers and
particularly Vietnam veterans.

The subject notes the December 31, 1982 New Year's Eve party
Tasted for several days. He had smoked some 10 marijuana
cigarrettes and snorted two lines of PCP while drinking
whiskey with beer chasers. He passed out. Prior to that,

his roommate asked to use his car to get some girls. His last
memory was telling the friend where his keys and wallet were.
He then fell asleep, awakening on Jan. 3, 1983 with a saevere
migrain and a number of people from the party still present.
Everyone continued to party. On January 5, 1983, he was told
a detective was at his door asking for him. The detective

was known to him and the two went to the sheriff's deputy's
office in Pasco County. There, Martin states he was guestioned
about something of which he knew nothing. Apparently, someone
burgiarized Lisa's family's home. Lisa was the girl who had
come to his car at the theater when he was a security guard.
The subject told the deputies he had no idea what the accu-
sations were all about. He denied any invoivement, recalling
his friend had used his car. He states he was questioned for
many hours. Later, questioning of his two roommates suggested
that he was involved in the burglary and the grand theft.
Eventually, he and the authorities had a plea bargain, ending
in two years in prison and two years on probation.

WORK HISTORY:
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HEALTH FACTORS:

The subject states he had pneumonia as a child. He fractured
his right leg when he fell out of a tree at age 10. He had
experienced no head trauma nor were there any evidences of
epilepsy in himself or his family.




ATTACHMENT D



COUNTY OF LEON )

STATE OF FLORIDA )

Affidavit of Charles Robert Brewer

CHARLES ROBERT BREWER, after being duly sworn and deposed,
states:

1. My name is Charles Robert Brewer. I live in Knoxville,
Tennessee, I will be 56 years old in September of this vyear.

2. I grew up in Knoxville among bootleggers and thieves.
when I was in grammar school I stole tires and sold them to some
of the most prominent citizens in town. When I was seventeen, I
was sent to Brushy Mountain penitentiary, the toughest prison in
Tennessee. 1 have spent 35 years of my life in and out of
prison.

3. I got out of prison in Florida in 1987 and since that
time I have turned my life around, I have been driving a truck
for three years and I am proud to say I am now a law-abiding
citizen. I have done some things in my life that I am not
particularly proud of and now I am trying to straighten some of
it out. |

4. I met Martin Grossman back in the summer of 1985 when I
was a trustee in thé Pinellas County Jail. Martin was awaiting
trial for the murder of the wildlife cofficer and I used to serve
him his meals. I spent about three hours a day on G-wing where
he was being held.

5. Martin was only 19 or so, and he was extremely nervous.

To cover up how scared he was, being in jail and facing the



charge he had, he used to brag guite a bit. I Xknew a lot of what

he said was just to appear tough inside the jail and to hide how

scared he really was inside. I did not believe a lot of what he

told me, including things about the cffense. I told the police I
thought he was exaggerating a lot of it so I would think he was a
tough guy.

6. Martin was upset about an article about his case that
had appeared in a detective magazine and we talked about it. I
had my brother contact a detective who I knew and who I had
worked with before.

7. Within a week or so, Pinellas homicide detectives
visited me in an office at the jail. I told them about my
conversations with Martin and they told me to continue talking to
him and they gave me some questions they wanted me to ask him.
The detectives told me they would try to help me out on my cases.
They said they would tell the court that I had helped in this.
case. I knew they could help me and believed they would, which
is why I assisted them. My lawyer also advised me to cooperate
and said it would help me on my cases. I alsc knew that once I
had started working for them, I could not back out or they would
come down harder on me in my cases. They said they would get
back with me. I was still feeding Martin and I continued to talk
te him and gather information as I had been asked to. After
talking to Martin some more and asking him the questions they
wanted me to ask him, I met with the detectives again and they
taped a statement from me. I continued questioning Martin about

his case until I was transferred from my job of serving food on



his wing, about a month before his trial.

8. I had also been assisting law enforcement on several
other cases at the time I met Martin. One was an auto theft case
in Clearwater that I was providing information on. I was also
helping Hillsborough authorities on a Tampa case. I believe
Pinellas law enforcement on the Clearwater case had told them
they should talk to me.

9. I met with detectives and assistant state attorneys
before my deposition and my trial testimony to go over my
testimony. A major peint of focus was my testimony concerning a
statement attributed to Martin that he "did not want to be
arrested by a female officer."” I do not remember where I got
that statement from. It might as easily have come from the
police or another inmate as from Martin. I cannot say Martin
told me that. I believe Martin shot the woman in a state of
panic after she fired the first shot, if he even shot her at all.
Martin never said he shot her and I have ¢ften wondered whether
she may have fired the fatal shot herself during the struggle.

10. I told the police that a young jail inmate named Don
Smith was on the wing serving food during my conversations with
Martin. I know for a fact they talked to Don Smith and I
remember a prosecutor saying, "no, we don't want him." I suspect
that is why they were not helpful in furnishing his name and
whereabouts to Martin's lawyer until the last minute. It was
cbvious they knew where he was.

11. Wwhen the state attorneys coached me for my deposition

and testimony, the issues came up about my prior felcny



convictions. I could not for the life of me remember how many I

had and all I could tell them was "there's quite a few." They
told me I had seven so I testified I had seven. If I had to
guess I would have said twelve or fifteen.

12, The state attorneys were Keen on this "female officer"
thing and made sure I appreciated that when they were preparing
me to testify. I remember during cross examination at trial,
Martin's lawyer honed in on this point. I have testified quite a
few times but that is the only time a lawyer ever really got my
goat on the witness stand. He got me mad and I guess I king of
took it out .on Martin by exaggerating and emphasizing the
negative points during cross examination.

13. My own case got sent back on appeal for a re-
sentencing. The assistant state attorney handling the re-
sentencing was Doug Crow, Martin's prosecutor. Some other
charges had come up in the meantime and Mr. Crow tried to get me
to take & plea on them, but I refused. The charges were dropped
and I am sure Mr, Crow had a hand in giving me a break on those.
He also informed the court at re-sentencing that I had provided
helpful testimony for the state in Martin's trial.
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FURTHER AFFIANT SAYS NAUGHT.
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Charles Robert Brewer
Sworn to and subscribed before me

this Q,g day of July, 1990.

NOTARY PUBLIC

My commisgion expires:
Notary Public. Siate of Florida at Large
My Commisgion Expires Jan. 13, 195}



